
Northern Inyo Hospital

March 17 2021 Regular Meeting
March 17 2021 Regular Meeting - March 17 2021 Regular Meeting

Agenda, March 17 2021 Board Meeting

District Board Agenda, 3-17-21 Regular Meeting ........................................................ 2

District Employees and Provider Appreciation

Employee and Provider appreciation ........................................................................... 6

District Board Resolution 21-02, PMA Building Purchase

District Board Resolution 21-02, PMA Partnership Purchase .................................... 7

Policy and Procedure approval, Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn

Policy and Procedure Approval, Stabilization and Resusc. of the Newborn ........... 8

Chief Executive Officer Search Firm selection

CEO Search Firm Ad Hoc Committee Report ............................................................ 10
CEO Search Firm Rating Tool ..................................................................................... 11
AMN CEO Search Proposal ......................................................................................... 12
HealthCare Recruiters Intl. Search Firm Proposal .................................................... 31
Merraine Group Cover Letter ...................................................................................... 36
Merraine Group CEO Search Proposal ...................................................................... 38
Sterling CEO Search Proposal .................................................................................... 54

Chief of Staff Report, March 2021

Medical Executive Committee Report, March 2021 ................................................... 72
Medical Staff Policy and Procedure approvals ......................................................... 73

Consent Agenda

Minutes, February 17 2021 regular meeting .............................................................. 78
Minutes, February 20 2021 special meeting .............................................................. 83
Minutes, February 27 2021 Special Meeting .............................................................. 84
Interim CEO and COO Report ..................................................................................... 85
Interim Chief Medical Officer Report ........................................................................ 105
Chief Nursing Officer report ...................................................................................... 109
Financial and Statistical Reports as of January 31 2021 ........................................ 111
Compliance Department Quarterly report ................................................................ 118
Policy and Procedure annual approvals .................................................................. 125
Cerner Implementation update, March 2021 ............................................................ 148

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 1 of 155

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

AGENDA 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

March 17, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
 

              Northern Inyo Healthcare District invites you to attend this Zoom meeting: 

  

TO CONNECT VIA ZOOM:  (A link is also available on the NIHD Website) 

https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09 

Meeting ID: 213 497 015 

Password: 608092 

 

PHONE CONNECTION: 

888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID: 213 497 015 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
    

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).    

2. Public Comment:  The purpose of public comment is to allow members of the public to address 

the Board of Directors.  Public comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are 

limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty (30) minutes for all public 

comment unless otherwise modified by the Chair.  Speaking time may not be granted and/or 

loaned to another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time unless 

arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of speakers to have a spokesperson 

speak on their behalf.  Comments must be kept brief and non-repetitive.  The general Public 

Comment portion of the meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of 

the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda.  Public comments on agenda items 

should be made at the time each item is considered. 

3.  New Business: 

            A. NIHD and Inyo County Covid-19 update (information item). 

B. Moment of appreciation by Board members for District employees and providers (information  

     item). 

C. District Board Resolution 21-02, purchase of Pioneer Medical Associates building interest, 152  

     Pioneer Lane, Bishop, California (action item). 

            D. Policy and Procedure approval, Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn (action item). 

Page 2 of 155

https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09


Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, March 17, 2021 

 

 

3/14/2021, 3:49 PM 

            E. Chief Executive Officer search firm selection (action item). 

            F. Appointment of Board Members to a Northern Inyo Healthcare District/Southern Mono  

                Healthcare District Joint Relations/Problem Resolution and Regional Cooperation Ad Hoc  

                Committee (action item).  

            G. Joint Conference Committee update (information item). 

      4.   Chief of Staff Report, Charlotte Helvie, MD:  

A. Annual Approvals (action items): 

1. Anesthesia Critical Indicators 

2. Surgery Critical Indicators 

3. Perinatal Critical Indicators 

4. Neonatal Critical Indicators 

5. Pediatrics Critical Indicators 

B. Medical Staff and APP Staff Appointments (action items): 

1. Jeffrey La Rochelle, MD (urology) – Provisional Consulting Staff 

2. Ali Kasraeian, MD (urology) – Provisional Consulting Staff 

3. Arin Stephens, PA-C (urology) – Advanced Practice Provider Staff 

4. Vanessa Blasic, PA-C (urology) – Advanced Practice Provider Staff 

5. Joceyln Moll, FNP-C (urology) – Advanced Practice Provider Staff 

C. Medical Staff Reappointment for Calendar Years 2021-2022 (action item): 

1. Arrash Fard, MD (cardiology) – Adventist Health Telemedicine.  Category:  

Telemedicine. 

D. Requests for Additional Privileges (action items): 

1. Anne Wakamiya, MD (internal medicine) – request for privileges in Stress Test 

interpretation 

2. Daniel Firer, MD (family med/emergency med) – request for privileges in Bedside 

Ultrasound after completion of required coursework 

E. Medical Staff Resignations (action items): 

1. Michael Rhodes, MD (internal medicine) – effective 11/24/2020 

2. Sheila Cai, MD (psychiatry, Adventist Health) – effective 1/15/2021 

3. Armand Rostamian, MD (cardiology, Adventist Health) – effective 11/9/2020 

F. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report (information item). 

           ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Page 3 of 155



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, March 17, 2021 

 

 

3/14/2021, 3:49 PM 

                                                     Consent Agenda (action items) 

5. Approval of minutes of the February 17 2021 regular meeting 

6. Approval of minutes of the February 20 2021 special meeting 

7. Approval of minutes of the February 27 2021 special meeting 

8. Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer report 

9. Interim Chief Medical Officer report 

10. Chief Nursing Officer report 

11. Financial and Statistical reports as of January 31, 2021 

12. Compliance Department quarterly report 

13. Policy and Procedure annual approvals 

14. Cerner Implementation update 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

15. NIHD Committee updates from Board members (information items).  

 16.  Reports from Board members (information items).   

 17.   Adjournment to Closed Session to/for:   

A. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Agency Designated Representative:  Irma Moisa;  

     Employee Organization:  AFSCME Council 57 (pursuant to Government Code Section  

     54957.6).   

B. Conference with legal counsel, existing litigation (pursuant to Gov. Code Section  

     54956.9(d)(1).  Name of case: Robin Cassidy v. Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 

C. Significant exposure to litigation (pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9), one case. 

     18.  Return to Open Session and report of any action taken (information item). 

     19.  Adjournment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 155



Page, 4, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, March 17, 2021 

 

 

3/14/2021, 3:49 PM 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 

participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 

prior to the meeting. 

Page 5 of 155



Page 6 of 155



RESOLUTION NO. 21-02 
OF THE 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Northern Inyo Healthcare District has conducted a review of its business needs 
and the potential acquisition of additional property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined it has a business need to acquire the real and personal 
property at 152 Pioneer Lane, Bishop California (“Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board approved the purchase of the Property at its regular meeting held 
October 21, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, proper survey, appraisal and other necessary property transaction documents and 
inspections have been completed to the District’s satisfaction, including the execution of an 
agreement whereby the District purchases the remaining partnership interest in the Pioneer 
Medical Associates partnership (“Partnership”) which includes all assets including the Property; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by this Board of Directors of Northern Inyo Healthcare 
District, meeting in regular session this 17th day of March, 2021 hereby authorizes the Interim 
Chief Executive Officer to execute all documents necessary to purchase the remaining 
partnership interest of the Partnership, making the District the sole remaining partner and 
owner of all real and personal property located at 152 Pioneer Lane, Bishop California from 
Nickoline Hathaway MD and Asao Kamei MD for a total amount of $1,017,488 as outlined on 
the Buyer’s Estimated Settlement Statement. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that District Management is instructed to transfer funds and/or 
execute any and all agreements necessary to make the purchase and occupancy of the property 
occur. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution be made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       NIHD District Board President 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
            Attest:   NIHD District Board Secretary 

Page 7 of 155



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn  

Scope: Hospital Wide  Manual: Perinatal  

Source: Perinatal Nurse Manager  Effective Date: 12/22/20 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

PURPOSE:  
1. To ensure that properly trained personnel are on duty to immediately act to resuscitate 

and stabilize newborns if needed and to ensure clarity of roles during a resuscitation 

event. A designated NRP certified RN dedicated solely to infant stabilization will attend 

every delivery.  

 

POLICY: 
1.  All RNs working within the Perinatal Unit who care for newborns will have current 

documentation of completion of Neonatal Resuscitation Program from the AAP/AHA 

within 3 months of hire. 

2. The NRP guidelines will direct all newborn stabilization and resuscitation. 

3. All events requiring NRP intervention will be reviewed by the unit manager in a timely 

manner.  

4. A Code Blue Critique will be completed after every Code Blue by the RN lead and House 

Supervisor.   

5. All codes will be peer reviewed as a critical indicator for the Pediatric Providers.  

6. All codes will be reviewed by the Resuscitation Committee.  

7. Neonatal Resuscitation Record, scanned into the Newborn’s Medical Record if used. 

8. Equipment and supplies will be checked each shift and prior to each delivery to assure 

proper working order and availability of resuscitation equipment.  

 

PROCEDURE: 
1. Neonatal Resuscitation will be performed in the manner specified by the most current 

AHA/AAP Neonatal Resuscitation Program edition.  

2. The RN lead will be filled by the Perinatal RN designated to care for the infant.   

3. The RN lead always have responsibility for assigning APGARS scores.  

4. The RN lead will notify staff to call the Pediatric Provider if they are needed and are not 

already present.  

5. The RN lead will determine the need for and initiate a code blue when Pediatric Provider 

is not immediately available. Reference the Code Blue Procedure-Code Blue Team 

Policy for clarification of responsibilities and roles of each team member.  

6. The lead RN will be in charge of performing or delegating all resuscitation efforts until 

either the Code Blue Team or the Pediatric Provider (Pediatrician or Family Physician 

with appropriate neonatal privileges) arrives to the bedside. 

7. Other available medical providers may participate in a NRP event but roles will by 

assigned by the RN lead.  

8. All procedures, treatments, and medications will be communicated to the recorder to 

ensure complete and timely documentation. 

9. Ensure that noise and unnecessary conversations are kept to a minimum. 

 

 

 

 

Page 8 of 155



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn  

Scope: Hospital Wide  Manual: Perinatal  

Source: Perinatal Nurse Manager  Effective Date: 12/22/20 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

REFERENCES: 

1. Neonatal Resuscitation 7th Edition AHA/AAP 

 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
1. Code Blue Procedure-Code Blue Team 

 

Approval Date 

CCOC 1/12/2021 

Peri-Peds Committee  12/22/2020 

Resuscitation Committee 2/16/2021 

Board  of Directors  

Last Board of Directors Review  

 

Developed: 12/20 

Reviewed: 

Revised: 

 

 

Page 9 of 155



 
 

Ad Hoc Committee to Solicit Proposals from and Recommend 
An Executive Search Firm for Chief Executive Officer for NIHD 

Ad Hoc Committee members Topah Spoonhunter & Jean Turner 
February 24, 2021 

 
Communication and proposal solicitation occurred with nine (9) separate executive search 
firms, beginning in late January.  Also our two State associations, CA Hospital Association 
(CHA) and Association of CA Healthcare Districts (ACHD), were informed and requested 
to provide any available assistance to notify search firms of NIHD’s interest in soliciting 
proposals.  To date, four (4) proposals have been received from the following firms, all 
of which have a California presence or office lcoation: 
 
HealthCare Recruiters International (HCR) 
Merraine Group Inc. 
Sterling Search Inc. 
AMN Healthcare Inc 
 
This Ad Hoc Committee met on February 24, 2021 to review proposals from executive 
search firms.  Proposals had been scored independently by committee members prior to 
this meeting.   The Committee unanimously recommends AMN Healthcare, Inc. as the 
best-suited executive search firm to begin our NIHD search for a Chief Executive Officer.   
 
 

Page 10 of 155



 
 
 
 

Executive Search Firm Name:______________________________________ 
 
Board Member: _____________________________ Date: ______________ 
 
Total Score:   ____________________  (23 or less - Does not meet 
expectations;  24-29 - Meets Expectations;  30-36 – Exceeds expectations)    
 
Ratings:                      Pass       Meets      Exceeds 

Pre-search engagement of industry     1      2    3 

Attention to NIHD needs, values, experience            1      2               3 

Experience with CA and/or Critical Access Hospitals     1            2               3 

Experience with rural/remote areas                                1            2               3 

Repeat or referral business from former clients             1            2               3 

Candidate vetting process      1            2               3 

Ability to promote NIHD       1      2               3 

Candidate pool                 1            2               3 

Engagement process        1            2               3 

Post hiring services/guarantees                                       1           2                3 

Costs/price structure        1           2                3 

Recruiting abilities        1           2                3 

 

   TOTAL SCORE        

 
 

 

NIHD EXECUTIVE SEARCH FIRM RATING TOOL 

Page 11 of 155



 

  

AMN LEADERSHI P SO LUTIO NS  

Proposa l  
C h i e f  E x e c u t i v e  O f f i c e r  

 

 
PRESENTED FOR: 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District  

 

PRESENTED BY: 

Mick Ruel 

Vice President, Executive and Physiican Leadership Search 

 

Joseph Beam 

Inside Sales Consultant, West 

 

Date: February 2021 Page 12 of 155



 
 
 

2 
 

 

CONTENTS 

COVER LETTER ................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................................................... 4 

QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF FIRM ............................................................................................................... 6 

QUALIFICATIONS OF STAFF............................................................................................................................................ 7 

RELEVANT SEARCHES ..................................................................................................................................................... 8 

ASSESSMENT TOOLS TO EVALUATE CANDIDATES ...................................................................................................... 12 

PHASES OF THE SEARCH .............................................................................................................................................  13 

COMMITMENT TO DIVERSITY ...................................................................................................................................... 17 

PRICING SCHEDULE ...................................................................................................................................................... 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 13 of 155



 
 
 

3 
 

 

 

Dear Members of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District Search Committee, 

Thank you for considering AMN Leadership Solutions to partner with Northern Inyo Healthcare District on the 

recruitment of the organization’s next Chief Executive Officer. The following is a proposal to conduct a 

national, retained executive recruitment for the role. Included in the proposal is an overview on AMN 

Leadership Solutions, our Executive Search practice, highlights of our success in supporting similar 

recruitments and a summary of proposed terms and fees to retain AMN Leadership Solutions as your search 

partner. We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal, and it would be our great pleasure to assist 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District with this very important search. 

The Leader in Healthcare Executive Recruitment, AMN Healthcare has been recognized by Modern Healthcare 

as the #1 Senior Executive Search Firm in the healthcare industry. Our client-focused service philosophy, 

coupled with innovative differences in our recruitment practices, enables positive recruitment outcomes and 

client service experiences. Having helped healthcare clients for over 20 years, we know there is both an art 

and a science to recruiting the right leaders. We draw on a tremendous database of healthcare professionals 

and use a personalized placement methodology, exclusive to the healthcare industry. We also get to know 

each client’s organization and team. Throughout the years, this purposeful combination of organizational 

understanding and networking data – art and science – has driven success for our clients and our company. 

This proposal will describe our client-focused search process which is designed to ensure aligned goals in 

delivering positive outcomes and service experiences. We fully recognize Northern Inyo Healthcare District’s 

need to complete the search in a rapid fashion and our process will reflect this need.  We are fortunate that 

by virtue of the significant number of Chief Executive Officer searches conducted by AMN Healthcare our 

network of top-tier healthcare leaders is robust. Community hospitals in rural settings would be a focus for 

much of our work.  We will balance the need for alacrity with ensuring that we have a quality process that 

provides Northern Inyo Healthcare District with the best candidates for this crucial role. 

We are confident that, in partnership with you and the board, we can hone the key priorities for the Chief 

Executive Officer position, facilitate a smooth search process, and most importantly, engage top quality, “best 

fit”, and diverse candidates for Northern Inyo Healthcare District’s Chief Executive Officer role.  If you have 

any questions or require additional information to assist you in the selection process, please let us know.  

We look forward to hearing from you and sincerely appreciate your consideration.   

 

Kind Regards, 

    

   Mick Ruel     Joseph Beam 

   Vice President, Executive Search  Inside Sales Consultant, West  

Page 14 of 155



 
 
 

4 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
AMN Healthcare (AMN) is the largest executive search and total talent solutions  firm in the world, employing over 
3,000 recruiters and consultants.  The executive search division of AMN Healthcare is known as AMN Leadership 
Solutions (formerly known as Phillips DiPisa and now inclusive of B.E. Smith and Merritt Hawkins) and has been 
helping healthcare organizations identify C-Suite Leaders since 1995. The AMN Leadership Solutions team are 
veterans of the healthcare industry, having served in various leadership roles within the industry prior to joining 
AMN Leadership Solutions.  
 
Our team is comprised of tenured search executives, many of whom are former senior healthcare executives, who 
have relationships with executives across the country. Those relationships, combined with direct experience and 
knowledge, are how we help you find leaders who are the right fit for your culture and prepared to take on today’s 
vibrant healthcare landscape. AMN supports healthcare leaders with the latest thought leadership, technology 
solutions from credentialing to predictive analytics, and access to promising talent and resources. 
 
AMN Leadership Solutions data points: 
 

• 146 days average start to hire timeframe 

• Greater than 30% diversity placement rate 

• Measured by an outside agency, 95% of searches meet or exceed expectations 

• 95% of clients are “highly likely” to recommend our services 

• 89% repeat business rate with our clients 
 
WHY AMN LEADERSHIP 

 
A National Presence – Our search team brings knowledge of national and regional healthcare 
markets, in addition to well-developed relationships and networks throughout the U.S., enabling 
us to identify and engage the most talented leaders for your organization. 

 
Strong Business Ethics – We build and maintain our client and candidate relationships within a 
framework of trust, confidentiality, and mutual respect.  Our collective culture is to serve clients 
and senior leaders as “trusted advisors.” 
 
Outstanding Knowledge and Expertise – Our consultants are experts in healthcare, and experts in 
executive search. They remain highly involved in the execution of every search they manage. 
 
Exceptional Services, Continuously Refined – Through a third-party consultant, we survey our 
clients after every search in an effort to maintain the very highest standards and continually 
improve our processes. 

 
 
Approach 
   

• Our search process is unique in the market.  We believe that candidate experience and education is 
important, but even more critical is “how” they accomplish their defined success measures.  Will that 
style fit your culture? Our Advisory Services Division creates a competency map for each position in 

Page 15 of 155



 
 
 

5 
 

each unique organization, so from the very beginning, we are using evidence-based data to evaluate 
each candidate, rather than a reliance on end of process assessment tools.   

 

• We use the discovery process to provide leadership with a “state of the union” summary that can 
inform process and hiring decisions, as well as build support for the incoming executive.  

• We approach each assignment as your advisors – partnering with the hiring executive, human 
resources and/or the search committee.  We want to discover the key success elements such as: 
current state, structure, accountabilities, resources and opportunitieis. What internal and external 
constituents must be included for a successful outcome? Is a preliminary cultural assessment 
required? Who are the decision influencers and decision makers?  Will there be a  search committee 
involved in the process? 

 

• Once the process participants are identified, again we modify the process to your needs. We can meet 
on-site or using our LEAN approach to search, via video or teleconference with as few or as many 
individuals, internal and external to the organization as you deem necessary for our search team to 
thoroughly understand the position, the experience, style and skills required, the environment in 
which the new leader will operate, the success measures and the community.  

 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 16 of 155



 
 
 

6 
 

QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF FIRM 

AMN Leadership Solutions is dedicated to exclusively serving the healthcare industry. We serve clients in all 
healthcare provider categories: academic medical centers, medical schools, multi-hospital health systems, 
community hospitals, physician organizations, ambulatory care health centers, and post-acute providers.  In 
addition, we have clients from payor organizations and life sciences companies.  
 
AMN Leadership Solutions is committed to serving our clients as trusted advisors. We do not try to serve everyone 
but rather, we serve a select number of organizations and clients extremely well.  Our business model is specifically 
designed such that our senior consultants remain hands-on, performing candidate interviews and references 
personally. This strong focus on customer service is appreciated by our clients, and we are proud to have one of the 
highest repeat business percentages in the healthcare executive search business at 91%. To maintain performance 
excellence, we survey our clients telephonically after all searches and seek to continually improve our processes. 
 
We understand that choosing an executive recruitment firm is an important decision with strong ramifications to 
the organization. With this in mind, we offer the following benefits that we believe differentiates AMN Leadership 
Solutions from other leading search firms: 
 

▪ Outstanding Knowledge and Expertise – Our consultants are experts in healthcare and experts in executive 
search. We seek to fully understand your environment and the current challenges you face. 

▪ Integrated competence and culture assessment – matching the “how” of performance to the “what”. 
▪ Individually Tailored and Comprehensive Search Services – We do not subscribe to the “one size fits all” 

approach to executive search. Instead, we take the time to get to know our clients well, understanding their 
strengths and challenges.  Listening is the foundation of our search process which spans from organizational 
assessment to executive on-boarding. 

▪ Diversity as a priority – Diversity, Inclusion and Antiracisim are pillars of AMN culture.  The search for a 
broad range of backgrounds, ethnicity, gender, experience and education are automo 

▪ Our Market Position – Our size, strength, and scale enable us to bring the infrastructure required for “white 
glove” executive search.  At the same time, we are small enough to avoid issues which may be encountered 
with the largest search firms, such as extensive off limits 

▪ Our Candidate Relationships – At AMN Leadership Solutions, we are committed to treating all candidates 
and prospective candidates with professionalism and consideration.  Maturity, kindness, truthfulness, 
respect, and professional judgment are all hallmarks of our candidate relationships. This is our reputation 
in the marketplace – and because of it, prospective candidates readily engage with us.   

 
AMN Leadership Solutions is a Division of AMN, Inc. (NYSE: AMN) which was founded in 1985 and is jointly 
headquartered in San Diego, CA, and Dallas, TX.  By revenue and services, AMN Healthcare (AMN) is the largest 
nationwide provider of healthcare-specific workforce solutions, providing a broad spectrum of workforce and 
staffing services.  Currently, AMN is the parent company of 22 talent management organizations, each of which is 
a leader in its respective market. Our collective team within AMN Leadership Solutions is committed to the pursuit 
of a collaborative, best team approach for search execution, to the benefit of our clients and candidates. 
 
 

  

Page 17 of 155



 
 
 

7 
 

QUALIFICATIONS OF STAFF 

 

MICK RUEL  
Vice President, Executive and Physician Leadership Search 
913.752.4595 | mick.ruel@besmith.com  
 

As a Vice President of Executive and Physician Leadership Search Practice with AMN 

Leadership Solutions, Mick Ruel’s area of expertise includes clinical, management, and senior leadership. Mr. 

Ruel offers healthcare organizations an extensive network of executive contacts, as well as innovative processes 

to identify leadership skills that meet their specific needs and unique circumstances. He has partnered with 

clients nationwide in the selection of leaders ranging from mid-level to executive management and received 

awards for excellence in recruiting practices. His background includes work with Board Search Committees in 

CEO search and selection. 

Prior to joining AMN, Mr. Ruel managed a national executive search practice with a human resource consulting 

firm exclusive to healthcare. Mr. Ruel was a member of the executive search team specializing in positions from 

director to C-level executives. 

Mr. Ruel’s diverse recruitment experience gives him the ability to work effectively on a broad range of positions 

uniquely suited to healthcare organizations. His understanding of healthcare organizations and their specific 

needs has been a cornerstone for his success. 

JOSEPH BEAM 
Inside Sales Consultant, West  
817.915.4913| joseph.beam@besmith.com  

As Inside Sales Consultant, Joseph Beam supports healthcare executives who lead 

organizations in the western portion of the US. His role consists of assessing and developing 

leadership solutions tailored to an organization’s specific needs.  

Prior to joining B.E. Smith, Mr. Beam worked for a leading provider to Healthcare Organizations with compliance 

solutions for reimbursement, quality, and leadership initiatives through custom training, online tools, and peer-to-

peer briefings.  

B.E. Smith clients value Mr. Beams’ consultative approach to their specific executive leadership challenges. In 

enhanced patient care, as well as improved financial and operational outcomes.  

  

Page 18 of 155

mailto:mick.ruel@besmith.com
mailto:joseph.beam@besmith.com


 
 
 

8 
 

RECENT CEO/PRESIDENT LEADERSHIP SEARCHES 

Position Organization City State 

Chief Executive Officer Newman Memorial Hospital Shattuck OK 

Chief Executive Officer 

Arizona Alliance for Community Health 
Centers Phoenix AZ 

Chief Executive Officer West Holt Memorial Hospital Atkinson NE 

President, Maine 
Behavioral Healthcare MaineHealth Portland ME 

President and Chief 
Executive Officer 

Nathan Littauer Hospital and Nursing 
Home Gloversville NY 

Chief Executive Officer Good Shepherd Health Care System Hermiston OR 

President and Chief 
Executive Officer 

Beth Israel Deaconess Hospital 
Plymouth Plymouth MA 

Chief Executive Officer 

Children's Hospital and Medical Center 
of Omaha Omaha NE 

Chief Executive Officer Humboldt General Hospital Winnemucca NV 

President Parkland Health Center - Farmington Farmington MO 

President and Chief 
Executive Officer Northern Light Health (formerly EMHS) Brewer ME 

President, St. Peter's 
Health Partners 
Medical Associates St. Peter's Health Partners Albany NY 

Chief Executive Officer Dialysis Center of Lincoln, Inc. Lincoln NE 

Chief Executive Officer Estes Park Health Estes Park CO 

SVP & CEO, Henry Ford 
Medical Group Henry Ford Health System Detroit MI 

Chief Executive Officer St. Francis Memorial Hospital West Point NE 

Chief Executive Officer Starling Physicians Rocky Hill CT 

Chief Executive Officer Harris Health System Houston TX 

President Western Maine Health (Duplicate) Norway ME 

President, Chief 
Operations Officer  Care New England Providence RI 

President Vassar Brothers Medical Center Poughkeepsie NY 

President Eastern Maine Medical Center Bangor ME 

President Franklin Memorial Hospital Farmington ME 

Chief Executive Officer Willapa Harbor Hospital South Bend WA 

Page 19 of 155



 
 
 

9 
 

Position Organization City State 

President and Chief 
Executive Officer River Hospital 

Alexandria 
Bay NY 

Chief Executive Officer West Holt Memorial Hospital Atkinson NE 

Chief Executive Officer Swope Health Services Kansas City MO 

Chief Executive Officer Rochelle Community Hospital Rochelle IL 

President Memorial Hospital North Conway NH 

President, Bozeman 
Deaconess Hospital and 
Big Sky Hospital Bozeman Health Bozeman MT 

President and Chief 
Executive Officer South County Hospital Wakefield RI 

Chief Executive Officer CodeOne Monument CO 

Chief Executive Officer Northern Counties Health Care 
Saint 
Johnsbury VT 

Chief Executive Officer 
Human Services Management 
Corporation Milford MA 

Chief Executive Officer - 
Rehab Institute 

Sheltering Arms Rehabilitation 
Hospitals Mechanicsville VA 

President 
Methodist Le Bonheur Germantown 
Hospital Germantown TN 

Chief Executive Officer 
Heart of Texas Community Health 
Center Waco TX 

President 
Good Samaritan Hospital Medical 
Center West Islip NY 

President St. Francis Hospital Roslyn NY 

Chief Executive Officer, 
Penrose-St. Francis 
Health Services Centura Health Centennial CO 

Chief Executive Officer Eagle Physicians Greensboro NC 

President, Chief 
Operating Officer, Kent 
Hospital Care New England Providence RI 

President and Chief 
Executive Officer 

Northeastern Vermont Regional 
Hospital 

Saint 
Johnsbury VT 

President MelroseWakefield Healthcare Medford MA 

Market President 
CHI St. Joseph Health System-CHI Texas 
Division Bryan TX 

Chief Executive Officer Spectrum Health Butterworth Hospital Grand Rapids MI 

Page 20 of 155



 
 
 

10 
 

Position Organization City State 

Chief Executive Officer Grant Memorial Hospital Petersburg WV 

Chief Executive Officer Prairie Lakes Healthcare System Watertown SD 

President, Chief 
Operations Officer, 
Women & Infants 
Hospital Care New England Providence RI 

Chief Executive Officer Avera Health Sioux Falls SD 

Chief Executive Officer Riverwood Healthcare Center Aitkin MN 

President Rogerson Communities Boston MA 

President Methodist University Hospital Memphis TN 

President and Chief 
Executive Officer Rutland Regional Medical Center Rutland VT 

Chief Executive Officer 
Southern Maine Health Care Biddeford 
Campus Biddeford ME 

President and Chief 
Executive Officer Martha's Vineyard Hospital Oak Bluffs MA 

Chief Executive Officer Grace Cottage Hospital Townshend VT 

Chief Executive Officer 
Alliance for South Sound Health c/o 
MultiCare Allenmore Hospital Tacoma WA 

Chief Executive Officer North County Health Services San Marcos CA 

Chief Executive Officer 
Detroit Wayne Mental Health 
Authority Detroit MI 

President 
University of Texas MD Anderson 
Cancer Center Houston TX 

Chief Executive Officer Coquille Valley Hospital Coquille OR 

Chief Executive Officer Lake Regional Health System Osage Beach MO 

President and Chief 
Executive Officer 

Beth Israel Deaconess Hospital 
Plymouth Plymouth MA 

Chief Executive Officer Wyoming Medical Center Casper WY 

Chief Executive Officer Elica Health Centers Sacramento CA 

Chief Executive Officer St. Peter's Health Helena MT 

Chief Executive Officer Physicians Business Network Overland Park KS 

President & Chief 
Executive Officer Central Health Austin TX 

Page 21 of 155



 
 
 

11 
 

Position Organization City State 

Chief Executive Officer CommUnityCare Health Centers Austin TX 

Chief Executive Officer 
Northside Cancer Institute Professional 
Services LLC (AKA Atlanta Cancer Care) Alpharetta GA 

President Littleton Regional Healthcare Littleton NH 

 
 

  

Page 22 of 155



 
 
 

12 
 

TOOLS AND ASSESSMENTS 

AMN Healthcare utilizes the ESSENTIAL Assessment© for Senior Leaders to provide a sound predictive approach for 

measuring the leadership behaviors identified in the ESSENTIAL Competency Model©. This groundbreaking 

assessment includes information on why leaders do what they do, what they do, and how they do it. When you are 

selecting and onboarding senior leaders, knowing their potential to exhibit these essential leadership characteristics 

is critical for your business' present and future. These characteristics include thinking critically, understanding 

impact, leveraging knowledge, leading self, directing people, influencing others, initiating actions, and relating 

successfully.  

The assessment was developed in partnership with Hogan Assessments – who has over 30 years of experience 

providing cutting-edge assessment and consulting solutions to some of the world's largest companies, including 

over half the Fortune 500. The Hogan Research Team studied the ESSENTIAL Assessment© competencies, including 

how they are defined and developed. Hogan then mapped them through their assessment battery to identify the 

most predictive scales for each factor. Hogan then created predictive scoring algorithms for calculating a 

participant's score within each competency. 

Hogan Assessments mapped their Hogan Personality Inventory (H.P.I.), Hogan Development Survey (H.D.S.), and 

Motives Values Preference Inventory (MVPI) to the leadership competencies. This tailored competency mapping 

process identified the Hogan scales that are most predictive of each of the competencies and, via the design and 

implementation of custom results reports, provides a high level of predictive accuracy in the assessment process 

specific to your needs. 

We invite selected finalist candidates to complete the three online Hogan assessments that power the ESSENTIAL 

Assessment©. Once completed one of our senior executive coaches reviews the resulting data, prepares reports 

and facilitates a meeting with key stakeholders in your organization to review and discuss the results. Also, we 

develop an assessment-based interview guide for your final interviews. The interviews questions focus on 

assessment results that need more exploration through the remainder of the interview and referencing process.  

Once the successful candidate is identified, one of our senior executive coaches provides a 90-minute feedback 

session with your new executive to review and discuss the results. The coach helps the executive understand how 

to leverage the information for successful onboarding into your organization.   

This service incurs an additional charge of $3500 per candidate tested and is entirely optional.  We can also 

accommodate incorporation of any predictive analytics that are already in use within your organization.  

 Timeline: Following selection of finalist candidates and before finalist interviews. 

Deliverables: Presentation of each candidate’s potential profile and candidate specific questions for final 

interviews. Essential Leadership© Assessment results review call between search committee and senior 

executive coach.  

 
 
  

Page 23 of 155



 
 
 

13 
 

PHASES OF THE SEARCH 

Although certain elements of the search process tend to be standard, each search is unique in strategy and 
execution. AMN Leadership approaches a search with flexibility through a highly personalized process.  Experience 
shows that coordination and communication are essential to progress. 
 
Our search process for Senior Executives is unique in the industry. How so? It utilizes both LEAN principles and a 
competency+skills+personality methodology to enhance efficiencies and drive risk from the selection process.  This 
process accounts for the uniqueness of your specific organization’s culture and each leadership role you recruit.  
This adds the “how” to the competency you are seeking.  For example, a transformational leader can either solidify 
an organization around the new vision or create a mass exodus, dependent on “how” they manage change. Details 
are outlined below. This approach can be utilized with, or without a search committee.  
 
Given the inevitably busy schedules of your colleagues and team members, at the beginning of the search process, 
we will collectively establish a detailed timeline for all meetings and anticipated candidate interview dates.  In our 
experience recruiting for senior leaders, the average elapsed time from the date a final position description is 
approved to completion is highly dependent on preplanning interview dates and search committee meetings (if 
applicable).  In addition, the timeline is significantly altered if the position description is not completed and 
approved in a timely manner as we would not initiate contact with potential candidates until that is approved by 
the client. 
 
 

 
 
  

DISCOVERY  
The process begins with an in-depth assessment of the organization and/or specific division’s current environment, 
requirements for the position (skills, style, experience, education) and success measures for the new leader. We 
meet with the search committee (if applicable) as well as many other individuals/groups as you deem necessary to 
accomplish the following; ensure all key stakeholders, influencers and decision maker’s viewpoints have been 

Page 24 of 155



 
 
 

14 
 

heard, build a base of congruence for the candidate profile and success measures, identify and resolve any potential 
impediments to a successful conclusion and tenure for the new leader, set a timeline for the project.  These 
meetings can be held in multiple formats for maximum efficiency: in-person, video, telephone and electronic survey 
when large numbers of individuals such as faculty or students require inclusion.  
 
 Timeline: As client schedules permit, but usually Week 1-2 after being retained.  
 

LEADERSHIP PROSPECTUS/COMPETENCY MAP DEVELOPMENT 
A successful search begins with an assessment process that correctly identifies the necessary core competencies 
for the role, the culture in which the new executive must be effective, and the parameters by which they will be 
judged to be successful.  
 
 

 
 
 
We also ask your marketing/communications department to provide us with an organizational overview to ensure 
accuracy and maintain your corporate brand integrity requirements.  To that, we add the information gathered 
above, summarized into Position Overview, Candidate Profile (education, experience, style, skills) and Goals & 
Objectives.  
 
Once the Prospectus is finalized and approved by either the Search Committee or hiring executive, it is given to our 
Advisory Services Division who craft a competency map for the role.  Specific questions are then created for use in 
our candidate discovery that result in all candidates in the final presentation having the combination of skills and 
competencies that best fit your expectations.  
  

Timeline: Client Marketing Department dependent for overview section. AMN will deliver first draft within 
ten business days. 

Page 25 of 155



 
 
 

15 
 

Deliverables: Market ready Prospectus, Competency Map, Marketing Plan 

 
CANDIDATE DEVEOPMENT 
The search team will make all initial contact with prospective candidates with the ultimate goal of direct contact 
with every candidate nationally who is technically qualified for the role.  Our leadership search consultants will 
personally phone screen and perform an in-depth video interview each prospective candidate to ensure legitimate 
personal, family, and professional commitment to your process.  Candidates deemed to be qualified will be 
presented to the search committee.   
 
The pool of potential candidates who are able, interested and willing to engage will be limited and will likely be 
highly satisfied in their current roles.  Additionally, their families will likely be happily settled.  The manner in 
which these individuals are approached, developed and communicated with can determine whether or not they 
will participate in the process. 

• Contact potential candidates, including all those referred to us by our client and any nominated internal 
candidate(s), providing detail of the position and the organization to inform and engage each prospective 
candidate.  

Timeline: 6-12 weeks, position dependent 
Deliverables:  approximately 6-10 fully vetted, pre-qualified, recruitable candidates for discussion 

 

ONGOING COMMUNICATION 
During the time of candidate identification and evaluation, we want you to feel that that you have an up-to-the 
minute understanding of how we are advancing your process.  To that end, we schedule regular communications 
in the format of your choice.  We encourage you to let us know upcoming leadership meetings where you are likely 
to be asked about progress, so we can ensure your preparedness.  
 
We also utilize multiple web-encrypted programs such as Box or Microsoft Teams, so that you can watch the search 
process unfold.  Levels of access can be personalized.  The Search Leader can see all applicants, those under 
consideration, those nominated, every facet of the search, all while maintaining candidate confidentiality. Interim 
search committee meetings can be scheduled to calibrate candidates against the profile and/or web based dialogue 
can be ongoing between committee members.  
 
We will schedule, in advance, bi-weekly update calls with the hiring executive or select members of the search 
committee to apprise all parties of progress and challenges. We will send you an electronic status report, with CVs 
of individuals under consideration. (These sessions may be conducted by teleconference and the number of 
meetings and their duration are at your discretion.) We have found these sessions to be very informative and a way 
in which you can remain engaged throughout the process while providing important feedback to the search team. 
 
 Timeline: ongoing until search closure 

Deliverables: regularly scheduled updates and candidate grids, posting of all materials to web encrypted 
location. 

 

CANDIDATE PRESENTATION 
Using Lean principles, all key meetings are pre-calendared and participants are provided materials electronically 
well in advance of the meeting to ensure efficiency and use of the time together for dialogue and commentary.  
Those involved are provided with CVs and/or resumes, cover letter if required, brief narrative biography, and a 

Page 26 of 155



 
 
 

16 
 

candidate summary grid. The goal of this meeting is the identification of a number of candidates for further 
consideration through a first round interview. 
 Timeline: pre-calendared for approximately 8-12 weeks after approval of Leadership Profile. 

Deliverables: Candidate CVs and or resumes, cover letter if required, brief narrative biography, candidate 
summary grid.  

 

CANDIDATE INTERVIEWS 
This can be a two or three step process, client dependent.  First round screening interviews are conducted via video 
(client preference) with the committee or hiring executive.  Sample interview questions and electronic evaluation 
tools are provided. Your search team will be present to ensure a smooth transition between each candidate if 
interviews are done in blocks of time.  Again, we pre-calendar the entirety of the search process to ensure all 
participants, including candidates are available. Following first round interviews, the candidate pool is further honed 
to semi-or finalist candidates. 
 
 Timeline: pre-calendared to occur immediately following the presentation meeting 
 Deliverables: Interview Questions, electronic evaluation tools, selection of two to three finalists 
 
 

CLOSING THE INFORMATION GAP 
We will verify references provided by the candidates, and we will also contact references from our network that 
have insight into the candidate’s history and performance. Due to confidentiality concerns of high-level candidates, 
references are typically completed prior to second round interviews.   
 
We do not directly perform credit and criminal background checks.  Differentiating fact from innuendo has become 
increasingly difficult in the world of social media, where claims can be made, but not easily verified.  Yet, knowing 
as much as possible about a potential placement’s history to avoid hiring a person who is not a cultural or value fit, 
has never been more important.  Public discovery of a past incident has major negative consequences for all 
concerned. For these reasons, we believe that this best left to professionals who have expertise and the appropriate 
insurances and legal protections in this area.  We have made a decision to only verify educational and/or medical 
license and board certification credentials and make introductions for clients to firms, with whom we have worked 
and have confidence, for all other areas such as credit, criminal, employment verification, publications, media 
commentary and social platforms.  It is too important to be left to chance.  These services vary in price, based on 
the depth of investigation and can even include private deep dives by former investigative agency staff. 
 

 Timeline: Prior to Second Round Interviews 
Deliverables: Results from reference checks and verification of educational and board certification 
credentials 

 

SECOND ROUND INTERVIEWS 
We continue to assist in coordination of each visit. For the most senior positions, we engage with any significant 

other in order to ensure the entire family unit is invested in the move.  This information is shared with any relocation 

team members who will be involved with the candidate’s visit.  

Timeline: Following selection of finalist candidates 
 
Deliverables: Suggested final interview questions based on assessment results. Complete set of references, 
with the exception of current employer until an offer has been extended. 
 

Page 27 of 155



 
 
 

17 
 

NEGOTIATION AND POST-SEARCH ACTIVITIES 
We remain actively engaged during the compensation negotiations, providing as much assistance as the client 
requests.  If the Essential Leader process was selected, our senior executive coach will schedule a ninety minute on-
boarding session with the selected individual and will engage as necessary with the hiring executive to ensure a 
successful transition into the position.  Continued coaching, team evaluation, organizational culture assessment 
services are also available.  We will keep in contact with you and your new leader at regular intervals for the first 
year, 30, 60, 90, 180, days, then we hope to have established a relationships such that continue exchanges occur 
well into the future.   
 

OUR COMMITMENT TO DIVERSITY 
 
AMN’S ORGANIZATIONAL COMMITMENT TO DIVERSITY 
AMN Healthcare has a commitment to diversity and inclusion that permeates our culture and guides our actions. 

Our philosophy is grounded in and builds upon, AMN’s core values of Trust, Respect, Passion, Innovation, Customer 

Focus, and Continuous Improvement. AMN is committed to fostering and maintaining a diverse team that reflects 

the communities we serve. Our diversity and inclusion philosophy is that we should respect all voices and that 

innovation is only possible when many different views are included and encouraged. AMN is a founding member of 

an organization “30 by 30”, which commits to having thirty percent diversity for our own leadership. That 

commitment and focus on diversity permeates all our internal and external business practices.  

Our commitment to diversity also extends to our vendors, contractors, and suppliers. We work to facilitate 
business partnerships with diverse contractors and suppliers, and partner with national diversity supplier councils 
including: 

• Western Regional Minority Supplier Development Council 
• National Minority Supplier Development Council 

• Women’s Business Enterprise National Council 
 

DIVERSITY IN OUR SEARCH PROCESS 
AMN Healthcare’s commitment to diversity and inclusion is a cornerstone of our success and this permeates all the 

search and workforce services we provide.  Our candidate identification strategy includes exploring groups of 

individuals using geographic location and the education and experience benchmarks established by you during our 

early discussions. Our approach is designed to find the very best candidate regardless of race, religion, gender or 

sexual orientation for your organization. Focusing on candidate skills and accomplishments, rather than just 

education or employment pedigree, allows us to evaluate experience on an individual basis and create a more 

inclusive slate of potential leaders.  

 

Our collective sourcing system is designed to ensure equal opportunity for all candidates in the marketplace. We 

will meet with your leadership and, if appropriate, your Diversity Officer prior to the initiation of any search to 

determine and mutually agree upon an approach that ensures a diverse group of applicants. We encourage our 

clients to provide search committees with unconscious bias training prior to their participation in any selection 

process.  We requires our search consultants to pursue a diverse slate of candidates on every search assignment 

and to communicate to the client the opportunities and/or barriers to the recruitment of a diverse pool of 

candidates.  We have an exclusive partnership with a HUB (company level diversity certifican) business, Trennis 

Jones & Associates, to assist us in candidate identification and to broaden our diversity contacts.   

 

Page 28 of 155



 
 
 

18 
 

Along with candidate identification processes that ensure notification to diverse individuals in each field or 

profession, the following resources will be used to further enhance our efforts to identify underrepresented peoples 

as appropriate. 

• American Association for Access, Equity, and Diversity: The American Association for Access, Equity, and 
Diversity is the association of professionals managing affirmative action, equal opportunity, diversity and 
other human resource programs. 

 

• American Association of University Women: The American Association of University Women (AAUW) is 
the nation’s leading voice promoting equity and education for women and girls through advocacy, 
education, philanthropy, and research. 

 

• Diverse Issues In Higher Education: Diverse: Issues In Higher Education stands alone as the only source of 
critical news, information and insightful commentary on the full range of issues concerning diversity in 
American higher education.  Diverse addresses issues that affect Asian Americans, Hispanics/Latinos, 
American Indians, people with disabilities, seniors, LGBTQIA, veterans and other underrepresented groups 
in higher education. 

 

• Diversity Link: International organization bringing together diversity professionals, diversity job candidates, 
and employers around the world. 

 

• Insight into Diversity: National, online and print publication connecting businesses with potential 
employees to better reflect diversity in our local and national communities.  

 

• Minority Professional Network: The global career, economic, lifestyle & networking connection for 
progressive multicultural professionals. 

 

• National Association of Health Services Executives: Non-profit association of Black health care 
executives founded in 1968 to promote the advancement and development of Black health care leaders 
and elevating the quality of health care services rendered to minority and underserved communities.  

 
We utilize these resources in addition to our database and the personal connections with our diversity placements 
and former placements. As a result of our diversity recruitment strategies, our diversity placement rate for 2017-
2019 is greater than 30 percent. Diversity in these statistics expands upon the Federal definition, supporting your 
diversity aspirations and our own internal goals to advance leadership diversity, inclusion and antiracism. Our 
Advisory Services Division offers a program focused on building your diversity pipeline to ensure diversity continues 
to improve in senior leadership roles.  
 

OUR RESULTS 
As stated above our overall diversity placement rate (inclusive of Underrepresented Minorites and gender) is 
greater then 30 percent across our entire search business.  The following information provides a further break 
down of our diversity sourcing and placement rates: 
 

• 69% - candidate slates with Under Represended Minorities (URM) 

• 88% - candidate slates with female candidates 

• 19% - URM candidates hired 

• 23% - female candidates hired 

Page 29 of 155



 
 
 

19 
 

PRICING SCHEDULE  

PROFESSIONAL FEES 
Our standard professional fees proposed for each search is 33.3% of the first year’s projected cash compensation 

as spelled out in the letter of employement, inclusive of signing and performance bonus only.   

However, we will offer a professional fee discount to 30% of the first year’s projected cash compensation. Our hope 

is to develop a long term partnership with Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
• The first invoice for one-third will be sent at the start of the engagement.  

• The second invoice for one-third will be sent when the 2nd qualified candidate is presented or when a 

candidate is brought to Client location for in person interview. 

• The third invoice of one-third will be sent when candidate accepts job offer. 

• Upon completion of the search, if the actual cash compensation differs the targeted cash compensation 

above, we will issue a refund or final invoice to account for this difference.  In addition, incurred expenses 

will be added to the above invoices and continue to be billed monthly until the search is completed. 

EXPENSES 
• We recognize our responsibility as stewards of your resources and make expense decisions accordingly.  

• Incurred expenses charged to the Client fall into two general categories.  Both categories are groups of 
direct costs associated specifically with the execution of the client project. There is no mark-up of any direct 
costs. 

o The first category is for fixed project expenses. AMN Leadership Solutions is reimbursed for 
expenses that are  directly attributable to each engagement at a flat amount of $8,000. The fixed 
project expenses are billed with the first professional fee invoice for each engagement. Examples 
of these expenses include copies, telephone services, delivery charges, video conferencing and 
other technology involved with execution, education verification and database set up. 

o The second category is Candidate Development expenses.  These expenses are the direct costs of 
travel, meals, hotel, etc., associated with candidate interviewing and selection process and with 
visits to the client location.  It also includes specific research tools.  Each item is directly attributable 
to this client engagement and individually accounted for.  An invoice will be submitted to the Client 
for reimbursement of candidate development expenses incurred.  It is our policy to have 
candidates’ expenses reimbursed directly by the Client for their travel and related expenses, unless 
the Client requests otherwise. 

• The Essential Leadership Assessment© is an additional service and as described in this document, clients 
may elect to include this in the search process for and additional fee of $3500 per candidate evaluated.  This 
is inclusive of the on-boarding ninety minute session with the new hire and/or their hiring executive.  

QUALITY GUARANTEE 
• AMN Leadership Solutions will guarantee the placement for two-years after the commencement of 

employment for this search.  

• If the person leaves for any reason during this period except death, disability, change in ownership or 

reporting relationship, or substantive changes in responsibilities or required resources, AMN Leadership 

Solutions and this team, agrees to recruit another candidate at no charge, except for out-of-pocket 

expenses connected with the new search.  

Page 30 of 155



HealthCare Recruiters 

            International 

 

  
  

  
 

hcrnetwork.com           info@hcrjobs.com 

San Francisco | Los Angeles | Dallas | Houston | Philadelphia | Kansas City | Tampa | Chicago | Boston | Louisville 

262 Eldorado St. 
Suite 302 

Monterey, California 94022 
 

T: 415.773.0333 

 

 

CONFIDENTIAL 

 

To: Jean Turner 

Member - Board of Directors 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District  

150 Pioneer Lane 

Bishop, CA 93514 

From: Jonathan Guidi 

CEO 

HealthCare Recruiters International 

262 Eldorado #302 

Monterey, CA 94022 

January 29, 2021 

RE:  CEO Search 

 

Dear Jean, 

We appreciate Northern Inyo Healthcare District considering HealthCare Recruiters International (HCRI) 

as the Executive Search Consultant to recruit for a CEO.  

About HealthCare Recruiters International 

• Founded in 1984 

• Solely dedicated to the Health Care industry 

• US Staff of 20+ 

• Completed more than 6,600 searches since January of 2000 

• Executive Search Consultants with Health Care Industry experience 

 

This search will be led by Jon Guidi and supported by HCRI’s research and recruiting teams.   

 

Page 31 of 155



 
 
SEARCH STRATEGY, APPROACH AND EXECUTION  
 
Environmental Review – Position and Candidate Specification:  
 
I would like to detail a few points about our process for you and other members of your team:  
 
First, the Position and Candidate Specification, and Candidate Evaluation forms are critical documents 
and careful crafting at the inception of the engagement allows for the smooth execution of the 
processes that follow. A mandatory first step for us is to expeditiously discover the Company’s salient 
critical success factors (“CSF’s”), its culture, characteristics, future potential, etc., all of which enable us 
to effectively communicate this information and rapidly identify highly qualified candidates.  
 
Execution Time – Calibration Meeting  
 
From a timing standpoint, we can complete most projects in 120 days or less, that timeframe is defined 
as commencing with an Approved Position and Candidate Specification and ending with candidate 
acceptance of an offer of employment, given the availability to make interview schedules happen.  
 
We ensure that our projects are “on-track” by convening a “calibration meeting” approximately 21 days 

after commencement of the search, at which time we discuss, in-depth, the backgrounds of 

approximately five candidates for the Approved Position. In addition to the CV, we also prepare a matrix 

summarizing the candidates qualifications against several “must have” and “nice to have” skills that 

were derived from the CSF review. The matrix is a valuable tool facilitating a force-ranking at the 

conclusion of the calibration meeting. We recommend that interviewing commence promptly after 

HCRI’s submission of said candidates.  

 
 

Page 32 of 155



SEARCH STRATEGY & APPROACH  
 
We employ a highly targeted search strategy through multiple channels.  Our channels include direct e-
mail (on a confidential basis) as well as direct sourcing calls and networking with relevant contacts 
developed over 30 years.  
 
The result of these efforts is a target list of high-potential candidates whose names have been 

referenced (by multiple unrelated parties) as highly respected talent in their respective professional 

communities. 

Vetting the Candidate – The Candidate Report  
 
When a candidate is presented for an interview he/she will have already been vetted by our team in 
detail, via phone or Skype/video-chat. A written report is provided along with the submission. This 
report typically provides the following information:  
 

• The reason the candidate elected to join his/her first employer  
 

• The reason the candidate left most recent employer  
 

• The candidate’s current employment status  
 

• An analysis and appraisal of the candidate’s style and personality  
 

• Reasons why the candidate has been selected focusing on both “hard and soft skills,” for 
example,  

 
1. Fit with organization culture  
 
2. Reputation for results  
 
3. Ability to think strategically  
 
4. Communication skills  
 
5. Interpersonal skills  
 
 

 
Vetting the Candidate – The Candidate Reference Report  
 
HCRI is known and trusted in the Health Care industry, as such, we are able to obtain in-depth 
information from these sources, information that goes far beyond the human resource reference. 
Furthermore, we are sensitive to the legal issues surrounding reference checking. Therefore, no 
comments, pro or con, are ever attributed directly to a specific referral source. We also strongly suggest 
that our clients perform some reference checks on their own, and in that regard, we are pleased to 
provide the necessary contact information. 
 

Page 33 of 155



For every candidate presented, we will also have obtained most recent compensation history and three 
references provided by the candidate.   
 
 
 
“Non Solicitation” POLICY ISSUES  
 
After a preliminary analysis of the organizations we would consider as possible targets for your search, 
none of our current client companies are “off limits” for this search. 
 
HCRI REFERENCES  
 
HCRI has many clients that are happy to act as references. I can personally discuss appropriate 
references with you and arrange a conversation. We are very proud of the fact that we have consistently 
earned repeat business as these executives can attest.  
 
 
Confidentiality  
 
HCRI will maintain the confidentiality of all proprietary and confidential information supplied by you, it 
being understood that proprietary and confidential information does not include, and this obligation will 
not apply to, any information (i) in the public domain, (ii) which is or comes into HCRI’s possession 
without an obligation of confidentiality, or (iii) which is required by law or Nasdaq/securities exchange 
requirements to be disclosed.  
 
Additionally, if any candidate presented by HCRI is employed by «[Click and Type Client Name Here]» or 
any affiliate for a position other than that called for by this assignment, you agree to pay HCRI the 
agreed upon fee for each candidate.  
 
Professional Engagement and Fees  
 
Consistent with the standards of the search profession, our professional fees are as follows:  
Our fee is: 25% of first year’s salary 
First Installment:  1/3 of the anticipated fee (calculated at midpoint of salary range) will be due upon 
execution of fee agreement. 
Second Installment:  1/3 of the anticipated fee will be due at the time final interviews are scheduled.  
Final Invoice: The final invoice will reflect the fee calculated on the accepted offer.  The invoice will be 
sent upon start date of an offer and is due within 10 days of receipt. 
 
 
 
Candidate Guarantee: HCRI will replace any candidate within the first 6 months of employment who 
either leaves or is terminated by just cause.  
 
If the search is cancelled by either party, your obligations under this agreement, including but not 
limited to those described in “Professional Engagement and Fees” above, will survive.  
 
 
 

Page 34 of 155



 

 
 
General  
 
This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter 
and supersedes any previous oral or written arrangements or understanding. Equal Employment 
Opportunity is federal law, and in providing services under this agreement, HCRI will adhere to all 
prohibitions on discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, disability or handicap, 
sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, or military veteran’s status.  
 
It is HCRI’s standard policy to commence work on any search assignment only after written confirmation 
of the Agreement has been received by HCRI. If you are in agreement with the terms and conditions as 
stated above, please sign and return a copy of this letter to me as our formal authorization to proceed.  
 
I appreciate the confidence you have placed in HCRI and me, and I look forward to working with you.  
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jonathan Guidi 
CEO 
HealthCare Recruiters International 
 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Jean Turner 

Member - BOD 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District  

Page 35 of 155



January 31, 2021 
 
Jean: 
  
Thank you for your inquiry on Thursday concerning your search for a new CEO for the Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District.  With two decades of experience, Merraine Group is uniquely qualified to assist as 
you look for a new leader for NIH.  As a matter of record, Modern Healthcare has recognized Merraine 
as one of the top five executive search & recruitment firms for nine consecutive years.   In addition, we 
have been named one of the 1000 fastest growing, privately-held companies in the United States 
(source:  Inc Magazine 2017, 2019) while also being recognized by publications such as Forbes, the St 
Louis Business Journal as well as the San Diego Business Journal & News.   
  
Merraine Group is the premier provider of leadership at rural hospitals across the United States.  With 
two offices in California and 16 offices across the United States (including one in Nevada City/Grass 
Valley), Merraine has filled the C-level roles from California to Kuwait.  Recent C-level placements 
include the CEO at Southern Coos Regional Medical Center in Oregon, the CEO at Sharon Regional 
Medical Center in Pennsylvania and the COO at the Tuolumne Me-Wuk Health Clinics in Sonora.  In 
addition, please consider the following: 
  

 Merraine Group has an industry leading retention rate of 97.3% - the best in the 
business 

 We are the only  major search firm to run a two-shift operation thereby reducing your 
time-to-fill 

 Merraine Group offers a two year guarantee on all C-level placements 
 We have staffed more than 1,000 hospitals and medical centers at the leadership level 
 Merraine Group is a family owned and operated business whose Team Leaders all stem 

from the healthcare industry 
  
I have taken the liberty of attaching some information about our firm.  I’d like to also invite you to watch 
this three minute video about our firm which just came out last 
week:  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Hsmzf2oGgM4&t=15s 
  
In terms of our pricing, all CEO searches utilize a $10,000 retainer plus a $4,875.00 marketing and 
advertising fee.  We invoice 25% of the candidate’s first year’s compensation once the search is 
completed, but the $10,000 deposit is deducted from the total service fee at the back end.  Merraine 
provides a 14 day, first right of refusal on all submitted candidates and our two year guarantee means 
we will replace the candidate free of charge should you decide he or she is not the “ideal fit.” 
  
Jean, I can assure you this is our “sweet spot.”  Merraine Group thrives on filling roles for health systems 
such as yours, and I am 100% certain our team can find the next CEO of the Northern Inyo Health 
District.  Should you wish to schedule a time to discuss our firm’s process in more detail, I have copied 
my assistant – Jessica Flowers – so she may schedule a time that is convenient for both you and your 
Board.   
  
On behalf of all of us at Merraine, I would like to thank you for the opportunity to be of service.  We look 
forward to further conversations in the days to come! 
  
David  

Page 36 of 155

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Hsmzf2oGgM4&t=15s


  
In Need of a CEO?  Nobody Knows the Market Better: https://bit.ly/303OhEr 
  
David Gantshar | President & CEO | bio 

dg@merraine.com | direct 845.570.4292 | follow me on           
  
Merraine Group Inc. | 544 NW University Blvd., Suite #101 | Port St. Lucie, FL 34986 
main 845.290.1900 | fax 212.918.9184 | www.merraine.com 
  
Invite Me to Connect      skype: david.merraine   
  
 
 

Page 37 of 155

https://bit.ly/303OhEr
http://www.linkedin.com/in/davidgantshar
mailto:dg@merraine.com
http://www.merraine.com/
http://www.linkedin.com/inviteFromProfile?from=profile&key=10275618&firstName=David&lastName=Gantshar&isFromProfile=true&authToken=v7_-&authType=NAME_SEARCH&pvs=ps&goback=%2Epsr_*1_*1_David_Gantshar_*1_*1_*1_*1_*1_*1_Y_us_10901_*1_*1_*2_*2_*2_Y_Y_*1_Relevance
http://www.linkedin.com/in/davidgantshar
http://www.twitter.com/MerraineGroup
http://www.facebook.com/pages/Merraine-Group-Inc/110742908967951
http://merrainebrain.wordpress.com/
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ygn4BKPI-oU


MERRAINE
GROUP INC® 

Providing leaders for Healthcare, 
Social Services & Education

info@merraine.com
www.merraine.com

# 845.290.1900
Page 38 of 155

mailto:info@shepherdsg.com
http://www.shepherdsg.com


In February of 2001 I was right-sized, downsized and considered oversized for my position as Executive VP at a $100,000,000.00 manufacturing 
firm in New Jersey. I had spent the previous twelve years of my career in leadership positions building organizations, hiring the most talented 
individuals to be found, spinning off new organizations, creating retention packages and leading sales divisions.

I began to put a business and marketing plan in place and signed a lease  for 4,000 sq ft in New City, New York. That day, I also made one very 
important phone call to the most talented person I knew… my mother, Barb Ratner.  “I’ve got two other job offers,” she said. “Why should I come 
work for you?” After convincing her that while I’d pay her less  this would be much more fulfilling, she signed on. Before we hung up she said: “I 
have one caveat. It’s gotta’ be healthcare and social services.”  In summary, it’s her we can thank.

Within ten years we built one of the most successful executive search and recruitment firms placing senior executives at thousands of healthcare, 
social service and educational organizations across the globe. In March of 2013 we began our expansion by growing organically while also 
acquiring well-known brands including Nielsen Healthcare (Interim Leadership) and Bowen & Briggs (Children’s Services).  Since then, Merraine 
Group® has grown from a single office in New York to a global talent acquisition firm providing a suite of services across industries and continents. 
From California to Kuwait, from interim to perm, from medical centers to social service agencies, a premier brand was born. In the pages that follow, 
I’d like to introduce you to some of the services we offer. Just as important, I’d like to share with you some of the people we’ve recruited to our own 
firm over the years. To say this team is the “best of the best” is an understatement.

According to Modern Healthcare, Merraine Group is now the nation’s largest contingency search firm serving the healthcare, social services and 
educational markets.  We have been named a top five retained firm for nine consecutive years.  We’ve stayed humble. This is  another lesson Mom 
taught me.  Our defining characteristics continue to be  speed to market, discretion and an ability to find the very best candidates in the market.  If 
you want to know what it means to be a “Merrainiac,” please give me a call.  You’ll get it very quickly.

LETTER FROM THE CEO:

With dedication,
David Gantshar, President & CEO Page 39 of 155



Where talent is short and representation is critical, Merraine Group Inc.® is here to help. 
Our two-shift operation reduces recruitment cycle times, and our retention rate is second to 
none. To those of us at Merraine,® sourcing talent is about finding that unusual chemistry 
that will gel with your culture and make your organization the best it can be. We familiarize 
ourselves with that unique dynamic within your organization.  Ultimately, our goal  is to  find 
a candidate with the skills you are looking for, and the character traits that define your 
leadership team. 

Merraine Group Inc.® is a national healthcare and social services recruitment firm defined 
by exemplary service, rapid turnaround, discretion and superior talent selection. We have 
offices in more than 15 locations, spanning California to the UK and even as far as the 
Middle East. Our reach gives us the unique opportunity to source candidates on a national 
and international level allowing us to find the best candidate for your organization. We 
remain a  family owned business working across a variety of disciplines from hospitals and 
medical centers to laboratories and universities, from multi-specialty practices to 
organizations serving those with intellectual and developmental disabilities as well as 
behavioral health and youth-at-risk. 

When you think leadership, think Merraine®.

ABOUT US:

Page 40 of 155



EXECUTIVE SEARCH & 
PERMANENT PLACEMENT

When it comes to hiring an executive to lead your organization or manage a division, we want 
to be certain that our candidate is the perfect pick for you. For us, that means learning an 
organization inside-out and finding the very best talent that will move your organization 
forward. That’s more than a resume or a skill set. That’s chemistry! This is why Merraine 
Group® excels at building cohesive leadership teams. Whether it’s one leader or a new 
management team, Merraine® will provide a solution tailor-made for your organization. We 
offer a variety of service options including retained, contingency and priority search, which 
allow us to not only identify the best individuals in the field, but bring you top talent that will 
go the distance, playing an ongoing role in growth and development.   

Think of Merraine® the way you might think of a good wine. When you go wine tasting, you’re 
asked to close your eyes, swish, take a sip. What do you taste? Your palate might detect 
citrus or floral, coffee or chocolate, hints of butter or lemongrass. The perfect meal only 
brings out the flavors and aromas when paired with the perfect wine.  Essentially, that’s what 
we do. Our firm knows how to bring the right skill sets, chemistry and experience together to 
complement your organization.  Why does one person succeed in one environment but not in 
another?  For the same reason some personal relationships succeed while others fall flat. It all 
comes down to the perfect pairing!

Page 41 of 155



INTERIM & CONTRACT STAFFING
Why is interim staffing important?

For an organization to run smoothly and provide the best service, it is essential that key positions are filled with the right 
people. While short breaks without the proper management may be unavoidable, it is in the best interest of everyone that the 
gap in leadership be filled immediately. Often, in-house candidates are simply not yet ready for the roles, and having them 
take over prematurely can result in losses due to inexperience and lack of training. For this reason, having a professional 
candidate step in for an interim period can allow for a smoother transition and eliminate mistakes along the way. When 
positions in a company are vacated, responsibilities fall upon others often causing a strain on employees.  This can  result in 
erratic and uncoordinated work. Filling the position quickly will relieve those effects ensuring you and your team are  
confident knowing the work will be done efficiently and in a more focused manner. 

Merraine Group® typically provides an interim candidate within three to five business days of the initial request. In 2019, over 
99% of our interim candidates completed their assignment and more than one-third were offered the opportunity to join the 
organization on a permanent basis!

Merraine®’s client service team will handle every detail from candidate selection to travel arrangements, from licensing to 
payroll. Our commitment is to make the process seamless and stress free. 

Brenda is the Divisional Manager of Merraine Interim. Previously, Brenda worked as the General Manager 
for Nielsen Healthcare, a Merraine company. She has been an Executive Recruiter since 1997. Brenda’s 
team will partner with you to fill leadership roles for managers, directors, senior level executives and 
more. Fun fact:  Brenda used to live in Sao Paulo, Brazil.
Contact 845  290  1900 or info@merraine.com

 

Need more info?

Our Champion
Meet Brenda Isert, Manager - Interim Services 

Page 42 of 155

mailto:info@merraine.com


RPO - RECRUITMENT PROCESS OUTSOURCING 
Merraine Group®’s end-to-end RPO service offers the ability to outsource the entire recruitment process 
or just part of it. Recruitment Process Outsourcing is ideal for organizations with increased hiring activity, 
limited recruiting budgets, or manpower shortages. During the development process of our tailored RPO 
solution, your company’s goals, vision, and culture are taken into consideration. As a global company, we 
are uniquely positioned to find you the best candidates for your organization. Here at Merraine Group® 
we perform all of our pre-employment and onboarding “in house” including criminal and background 
checks, employment verification, drug testing and behavioral assessments. This allows you the time to 
focus on your core business and built your organization while we bring the talent right to your door.

Acting as an extension of your human resources function, we help design and customize strategic 
solutions to meet your hiring needs.  From as few as ten to up to one thousand positions, supporting one 
site or multiple locations, working at your offices or ours, Merraine Group® can “flex up” and “flex out” to 
ensure almost any timeline is met. Recent RPO’s have been completed for a social services organization 
across New York state, a pharmaceutical corporation in Belgium and a skincare company in Spain. 

Kelly is an accomplished Talent Acquisition Professional with over 20 years 
of experience in Human Resources Management including Recruiting, 
Project Management, Training & Development, and Staffing Operations.  
Her expertise is in leading high-volume recruitment projects.
Fun fact: Kelly began her career as a journalist in Washington, D.C.  
Contact 845  290  1900 or info@merraine.com 

Need more info?

Our Champion
Meet Kelly Gutradt, RPO Team Lead

Page 43 of 155

mailto:info@merraine.com


HR SOLUTIONS 
HRselect®, a Merraine Group® company, is dedicated to making your talent acquisition efforts as 
easy and smooth as possible. We want to assist in whatever areas you need most, enabling you to 
choose the services you need us to handle. We find candidates, run background checks, and can 
even assist with onboarding and payroll. Our staffing specialists have years of industry experience, 
and our company has strategic partnerships that can bring you significant savings in time and 
money. With HRselect®, you get to choose the HR services that are right for you. 

● Job Fair Assistance 
● Job Posting & Optimization
● Drug/TB Testing
● Talent Assessment
● Video Interviews
● Career Counseling

● Video Job Descriptions
● Background Screening
● Reference Checking
● Relocation Services
● Advisory Program
● Outplacement

Prior to joining Merraine Group®, Donald spent eleven years with Blue Cross/Blue Shield in their 
Philadelphia office.  For the past decade he has led Merraine®’s Career Development Group where 
all of the recruitment teams report into him.  Fun fact:  Donald is from Aberdeen, Scotland but 
does not play golf!
Contact 845  290  1900 or info@merraine.com

Need more info?

Our Champion
Meet Donald Ross, Director Career Development & HRselect®

Page 44 of 155

mailto:info@merraine.com


DIVERSITY & INCLUSION
As a company that excels in HR and hiring, we use our influence to help eliminate racial, ethnic, 
gender, religious and all other forms of discrimination. We want every candidate to have an equal 
opportunity at any profession without the influence of external or internal biases. Our Diversity 
and Inclusion team is devoted to allowing all candidates equal footing in the search for career 
opportunities. Merraine Group® provides companies with access to the most qualified talent 
while executing upon the growth of a diverse and inclusive workforce.

Across our many offices, we employ a large group of recruiters, from college graduates to 
established experts in their field, without discrimination against race, gender, ethnicity, sexual 
orientation or any protected characteristic. We take pride in the many languages we speak and 
the many countries our team members are from.  It is this diversity that has equipped us to serve 
such a broad scope of organizations so well.   Working together to promote more equity and 
greater inclusion in the workforce, we are spreading the vision of a brighter future. 

For more information:  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JsFjkNy05ZE&t=5s

Alfred has over 25 years of experience in corporate structure and operations. His team 
building skills and passion for innovation have driven Alfred’s dedication to diversity, 
equity and inclusion projects.  Fun fact:  Alfred pilots a Cessna 185 in his spare time.
Contact 845  290  1900 or info@merraine.com

Need more info?

Meet Alfred Hankins, Manager - Diversity & Inclusion 
Our Champion

Page 45 of 155

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JsFjkNy05ZE&t=5s
mailto:info@merraine.com


MERRAINE® ON-SITE
Merraine® On-Site provides your organization with one of our skilled and 
professional recruiters on-site to assist with regional and national 
recruitment efforts. We bring all of our recruitment strategies and services 
to your facility, along with a personal approach to meet your organization’s 
individual needs. Our experts are equipped to handle everything from 
large-scale RPO efforts to the recruitment of key interim and permanent 
leaders within your organization. With retention strategies, a good eye for 
talent, and a unique interest in the dynamic of your company, our on-site  
service will ease the stress of the recruitment process and help find the 
right candidates quickly.  

For more information: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3xwGZztpUos

Troy has been with the firm for nine years bringing a strong background 
in both interim and permanent placement. His on-site efforts include  
hospitals in Montana and social service organizations in New York where 
he brought his expertise to a variety of organizations. Fun fact: Troy was 
born in Kailua, Hawaii and spends almost every weekend fishing.
Contact 845  290  1900 or info@merraine.com

Need more info?

Our Champion

Meet Troy McLean, Coordinator On-Site Services

Page 46 of 155

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SnytExQIn_o
mailto:info@merraine.com


TRAINING & EDUCATION

Below are some of the programs we offer: 

● Recruitment Best Practices 
● Goal Setting 
● Achieving Purposeful Communication
● Embracing Diversity 
● Time Management
● Building Trust 
● Closing the Deal
● Coaching Competency 
● Conflict Resolution
● How to Build a More Welcoming Interview Process
● Retention Strategies

We recognize the importance individuals place on joining an organization that embraces continued learning, colleagues 
committed to ongoing development and leadership dedicated to growth. We offer customized cost-effective avenues 
achieving higher retention rates and greater performance within your company. We want to give your team the tools they 
need to do their best. 

Laura has  more than two decades of experience in business and talent development including many years as 
the Corporate Director of Training for the world’s largest recruitment firm. Her dedication to helping 
organizations grow in leadership, performance and cultural competency has led to a positive and significant 
impact on those we partner with. Fun fact: Laura previously lived with a ghost.  

Contact 845 - 290 - 1900 or info@merraine.com

Need more info?

Our Champion

Meet Laura Burgess, Senior Director - Business Development & Training

Page 47 of 155

mailto:info@merraine.com


ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The Organizational Consulting and Development Team at Merraine Group® helps 
companies grow by identifying opportunities for improvement in efficiency, operational 
enhancements and strategy development. With a strong focus on human capital, 
big-picture perspective and organizational effectiveness, we work with clients to reach 
their maximum potential.

We offer a variety of tools to analyze organizational structure, leadership effectiveness 
and mission alignment, allowing your team to do their part in the best possible way. 
We promote teamwork and encourage a healthier dynamic by offering programs 
geared towards stronger communication, a shared mission and conflict resolution.  

Jonathan honed his skills at KPMG prior to joining Merraine Group® where he 
leads the Organizational Consulting division. With a Master’s degree in 
Organizational Consulting and Development, Jonathan has spearheaded 
consulting projects for both small private companies and large global 
organizations. Fun fact: Jonathan has been playing the piano for more than 
three decades but refuses to play at company functions. 

Contact 845 - 290 - 1900 or info@merraine.com

Need more info?

Meet Jonathan Fund, VP Operations & Organizational Development

Our Champion

Page 48 of 155

mailto:info@merraine.com


INTERNATIONAL RECRUITING
Merraine Group® is a global firm, with employees fluent in over a dozen languages. 
We recruit worldwide and have successfully filled leadership positions across five 
continents.  We have over 15 offices around the globe, from Florida to the UK, 
California to Dubai. Our offices in Manchester (UK and Dubai (UAE have delivered 
assignments ranging from CSuite Executives of major hospitals, GPO’s, public 
health organizations and governmental organizations. Merraine’s recent expansion 
to Dubai and our joint venture in Latin America have allowed our firm to better 
serve our customers throughout these regions. With affiliates in more than 45 
countries around the world, our services are offered on every continent and in 
every time zone. 

We are able to provide permanent, interim or temporary solutions across all of our 
locations with the experience, resources and ability to identify and hire the best 
talent for your organization, no matter where you are located.

Jeremy has been working in recruitment since 1999, establishing JS3 
Recruitment in 2009 with the objective of creating a service led 
business focused on building genuine relationships. Today Jeremy 
leads Merraine’s UK office.  Fun fact: At the age of eleven, Jeremy was 
the mascot of the Leeds United soccer team.
Contact 845  290  1900 or info@merraine.com

Need more info?

Meet Jeremy Lennard, Managing Director - Global Recruitment

Our Champion

Page 49 of 155

mailto:info@merraine.com


RELOCATION SERVICES
Moving forward in your career often means relocating to another part of the country. Merraine 
Group® wants to ensure that each transition goes as smoothly as possible. We offer a 
comprehensive array of relocation services. These include a salary tool to determine how much a 
candidate needs to earn, a moving calculator to help budget the upcoming move, free city reports 
to compare side-by-side information on demographics, a religious and educational services 
locator and a trailing spouse program. We provide all the information needed from cost of living to 
in-depth school reports on public and private schools, and even a mortgage qualifier to figure out 
how much can be expected at today’s mortgage rates.  

With offices across the country, we are knowledgeable of many regions, cities and 
neighborhoods. Rest assured, we will assist your new hire with every step of the transition. Our 
job does not end when a candidate signs the offer letter. Often, that’s just the beginning. 
Changing jobs is stressful enough. Merraine Group® will ensure relocation is one less item to 
worry about. Moving shouldn’t get in the way of the dream job or the dream hire. Merraine Group® 
is here to help. 

Jessica has worked at Merraine Group®, Inc. for over ten years.  She has participated in 
many aspects in the company’s growth and now works closely with our President & 
CEO. Jessica is an integral part of the company and oversees our relocation services. 
Fun fact: Jessica’s idea of a good time is to visit the House of Seven Gables in Salem.
Contact 845  290  1900 of info@merraine.com

Need more info?

Our Champion

Meet Jessica Flowers, Executive Assistant to the CEO & Relocation Coach

Page 50 of 155

mailto:info@merraine.com


CONTACT INFORMATION

SOUTHWEST OFFICE
9888 Carroll Centre Rd, Suite 211
San Diego, CA 92126
Phone: (858) 565 6600

NORTHWEST OFFICE
435 Zion Street
Nevada City, CA 95959
Phone: (530) 475 6755

CENTRAL OFFICE
9920 Watson Road, Suite 114
St. Louis, MO 63126
Phone: (314) 984 0910

MIDWEST OFFICE
1221 Bellevue St., Suite 107
Green Bay, WI 54311
Phone: (920) 434 8770

NORTHEAST OFFICE 
734 Walt Whitman Road, Suite 300
Melville, NY 11747
Phone: (516) 364 9290

UNITED KINGDOM & EUROPE
Warth Business Centre, Warth Road,
Bury BL9 9NB
Phone: +44 (0) 203 769 1476

CORPORATE OFFICE
544 NW University Blvd. Suite 101
Port Saint Lucie, FL 34986
Phone: (845) 290 1900

ADDITIONAL OFFICES IN:
Boston • Philadelphia • Morgantown 
Charleston • Fort Lauderdale 
Cleveland • Cape Cod • Dubai

Page 51 of 155



As a company, our goal is to help businesses grow 
and flourish, while empowering change and using our 
influence to eliminate all forms of discrimination. We 
value initiative and embrace new ideas; we 
emphasize working together toward success, finding 
solutions for our clients through dedication and 
commitment. At Merraine Group® we value 
responsibility and accountability, which is why our 
company strives to be environmentally friendly and  
is taking tangible steps in the direction of a better 
future for our planet.

Our Merraine® values serve as guideposts in our 
business strategy and commitment to build a 
high-performance culture specializing in the 
placement of top professionals in world-class 
organizations. 

These values drive our behaviors every day. 

TEAMWORK
Working together to succeed.

MAKING A DIFFERENCE
Changing people’s lives for the better.

CLIENT FOCUS
Exceeding the expectations of every client.

PIONEERING SPIRIT
Initiating and embracing new ideas with enthusiasm.

BEST IN CLASS
Provide exceptional value added services to our clients.

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY
Strong moral values, keeping our word and doing the right thing.

OPENNESS AND TRUST
Relying on each other and communicating with honesty and acceptance.

RESPECT AND CONCERN FOR EACH OTHER
Accepting and supporting each other both personally and professionally.

FUN ALONG THE WAY
Recognizing contributions, maintaining perspective and celebrating success.

COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE
Acting to make a difference, taking responsibility for our actions and 
continually striving to be even better.

MERRAINE GROUP INC.® 

WHAT WE VALUE

Page 52 of 155



Merraine Group® is committed to a sustainability policy that will 
protect our planet and our natural resources for generations to come.  
For this reason, our offices are almost completely paperless and  
efforts have been made across the corporation to reduce both waste 
and our carbon footprint. Videoconferencing, the usage of recycled 
materials, halogen and incandescent lighting, sustainable water 
systems and the recycling of all office products is encouraged across 
all our offices.  

In addition, in the spring of 2020, Merraine Group® initiated a “Green 
Pastures” program. For every placement we make at Merraine®, we 
plant a tree through our charitable giving program. By planting trees 
in the environment, Merraine® is not only doing what we can to 
reduce our carbon footprint but helping to reduce climate change 
while providing the very best renewable energy source our planet 
has to offer. Every tree planted in the forest will eventually store 500 
to 800 kilograms of carbon. Be assured, Merraine® will do our part to 
leave this planet a better place than we found it. 

ENVIRONMENTAL AWARENESS
& SUSTAINABILITY

Page 53 of 155



1.
Page 54 of 155



2.
Page 55 of 155



3.
Page 56 of 155



4.
Page 57 of 155



5.
Page 58 of 155



6.
Page 59 of 155



7.
Page 60 of 155



8.
Page 61 of 155



9.
Page 62 of 155



10.
Page 63 of 155



11.
Page 64 of 155



12.
Page 65 of 155



13.
Page 66 of 155



14.
Page 67 of 155



15.
Page 68 of 155



16.
Page 69 of 155



17.
Page 70 of 155



18.
Page 71 of 155



 

 

TO:  NIHD Board of Directors 

FROM:  Charlotte Helvie, MD, Chief of Medical Staff 

DATE:  March 2, 2021 

RE:  Medical Executive Committee Report 

 

The Medical Executive Committee met on this date. Following careful review and consideration, the Committee 

agreed to recommend the following to the NIHD Board of Directors: 

 

A. Annual Approvals (action item) 

1. Anesthesia Critical Indicators 

2. Surgery Critical Indicators 

3. Perinatal Critical Indicators 

4. Neonatal Critical Indicators 

5. Pediatrics Critical Indicators 

 

B. Medical Staff and APP Staff Appointments (action item) 

1. Jeffrey La Rochelle, MD (urology) – Provisional Consulting Staff 

2. Ali Kasraeian, MD (urology) – Provisional Consulting Staff 

3. Arin Stephens, PA-C (urology) – Advanced Practice Provider Staff 

4. Vanessa Blasic, PA-C (urology) – Advanced Practice Provider Staff 

5. Jocelyn Moll, FNP-C (urology) – Advanced Practice Provider Staff 

 

C. Medical Staff Reappointments for Calendar Years 2021-2022 (action item) 

1. Arrash Fard, MD (cardiology) – Adventist Health Telemedicine. Category: Telemedicine. 

 

D. Requests for Additional Privileges (action items) 

1. Anne Wakamiya, MD (internal medicine) – request for privileges in Stress Test interpretation.  

2. Daniel Firer, MD (family med/emergency med) – request for privileges in Bedside Ultrasound 

after completion of required coursework.  

 

E. Medical Staff Resignations (action items) 

1. Michael Rhodes, MD (internal medicine) – effective 11/24/2020 

2. Sheila Cai, MD (psychiatry, Adventist Health) – effective 1/15/2021 

3. Armand Rostamian, MD (cardiology, Adventist Health) – effective 11/9/2020 

 

F. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report (information item) 

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District 

150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, California  93514 

          Medical Staff Office 

    (760) 873-2136     voice 

     (760) 873-2130     fax 

      

Page 72 of 155



Approvals: 
 

Surgery/Tissue/Transfusion/Anesthesia: 01/27/21 
Medical Executive Committee: 03/02/21 

Board of Directors:  

Anesthesia Critical Indicators  

 20202021  

Adopted from ‘MACRA Ready’ Adverse Events Reporting Form 

Cardiovascular 

1. Dysrythmia requiring intervention 

2. Cardiac arrest (unplanned) 

3. Unexpected death 

4. Stroke, CVA, or coma 

5. Myocardial ischemia 

6. Myocardial infarction 

7. Vascular access injury 

(arterial/pneumothorax) 

8. Uncontrolled HTN 

Respiratory 

9. Aspiration 

10. Pneumothorax (related to anesthesia) 

Regional 

11. Failed Regional Anesthetic 

12. Systemic local anesthetic toxicity 

13. Post-dural puncture headache 

14. Epidural hematoma after spinal/epidural 

15. Epidural abscess after spinal/epidural 

16. Peripheral nerve injury following regional 

17. Infection following peripheral nerve block 

PACU 

18. Temperature <95.9° F or <35.5° C 

19. Inadequate Reversal 

20. Reintubation (planned trial extubation 

documented) 

21. Reintubation (no planned trial extubation) 

 

 

 

 

Medication 

22. Medication administration error 

23. Adverse transfusion reaction 

24. Anaphylaxis 

Process 

25. Wrong site surgery 

26. Wrong patient 

27. Difficult airway 

28. Unplanned hospital admission 

29. Unplanned ICU admission 

30. Wrong surgical procedure 

Miscellaneous 

31. Dental trauma 

32. Visual loss 

33. Malignant Hypothermia 

34. Awareness under GA 

35. Equipment malfunction 

36. Fire in OR 

37. Airway fire in OR 

38. Corneal abrasion 

39. Fall in OR 

40. Other 

Page 73 of 155



 

Approvals: 
 
Surgery/Tissue/Transfusion/Anesthesia: 01/27/21 

Medical Executive Committee: 03/02/21 

Board of Directors:  

Surgical Critical Indicators 

20202021 

 

1. Death within 30 days of a surgical or anesthetic procedure. 

2. Unanticipated admission to the Intensive Care Unit from a lower level of care. 

3. Unanticipated return to the Operating Room. 

4. Unanticipated readmission to the hospital within 30 days following a surgical procedure. 

5. Unanticipated return to the hospital following surgery. 

6. Unanticipated removal or repair of tissue not considered to be a common outcome of 

the procedure. 

7. Unanticipated patient retention of foreign material. 

8. Complication consequent to implantation of prosthetic devices or their malfunction or 

failure. 

9. Documented significant postoperative complication within 30 days. These will include 

ventilator failure, myocardial infarction, stroke, renal failure, pulmonary embolus or 

deep vein thromboembolic disease, sepsis, or impairment of body function to a level 

less than that present prior to a surgical or anesthetic procedure, and less than 

commonly expected as a result of the operative procedure.  

10. Airway management for moderate sedation (oral airway or bagging patient). 

11. Wrong-site surgery. 

Page 74 of 155



 

Approvals: 

Peri-Peds Committee: 2/4/202/23/21 

Medical Executive Committee: 3/3/203/2/21 

Board of Directors: 4/15/20 

Perinatal Critical Indicators 

20202021 

 

1. Maternal death or resuscitation 

2. Fetal demise beyond 20 weeks gestation 

3. Transfer to a higher level of care 

4. APGAR score less than 7 at 1 or 5 minutes 

5. Neonatal trauma 

6. Maternal seizurePreeclampsia 

7. Vaginal deliveries coded with shoulder dystocia 

8. 3rd and 4th degree lacerations 

9.8. Postpartum hemorrhage requiring transfusion   

10.9. Postpartum readmission 

11.10. Disruption or infection of obstetrical wound 

12.11. Delivery of infant less than 36 weeks gestation 

13.12. Delivery of infant greater than 42 weeks gestation 

14.13. Maternal admission to ICU 

15.14. Maternal induction of labor less than 39 weeks without documented indication 

16.15. Staff concerns. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 75 of 155



Approved: 

Peri-Peds Committee: 12/5/192/23/21 

Medical Executive Committee: 1/7/20 

Board of Directors: 1/15/20 

Neonatal Critical Indicators 

20202021 

 

1. APGAR score less than 7 at 1 or 5 minutes 

2. Neonatal resuscitation (PPV or beyond) 

3. Infant in Neonatal Peds status 

4. Birthweight less than 2000g 

5. Infant of a diabetic mother 

6. Gestation less than 36 weeks  

7. Infant re-admitted within 48 hours of discharge 

8. Transfer to NICU 

9. Pediatrician attended delivery  

10. Any chart brought forward by staff due to concerns 

 

Page 76 of 155



 

Approved: 

Peri-Peds Committee: 12/5/192/23/21 

Medical Executive Committee: 1/7/203/2/21 

Board of Directors: 1/15/20 

Pediatric Critical Indicators 

20202021 

 

1. Patient transfer to a higher level of care or referral center 

2. Readmission to the hospital within 30 days for the same or related diagnosis 

3. Respiratory or cardiac arrest (Apnea >15 seconds) 

4. Death 

5. Abuse 

6. Dehydration requiring Intravenous Fluid 

7. Neonates < 28 days, admitted to the Acute/Sub Acute Services 

8. Length of stay exceeding 48 hours 

9. IV/IM antibiotics 

10. Nursing concerns 

Page 77 of 155



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                   February 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 1 of 6 

      

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by Robert Sharp, District 

Board Chair. 

 

PRESENT 

 

Robert Sharp, Chair   

Jody Veenker, Vice Chair 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Topah Spoonhunter, Treasurer 

Kelli Davis MBA, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating  

    Officer 

William Timbers MD, Interim Chief Medical Officer  

Allison Partridge RN, MSN, Chief Nursing Officer  

Vinay Behl, Financial Consultant 

Charlotte Helvie MD, Chief of Staff  

Keith Collins, General Legal Counsel (Jones and Mayer) 

 

ABSENT Jean Turner, Member-at-Large 

 

 

OPPORTUNITY FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Mr. Sharp announced that the purpose of public comment is to allow 

members of the public to address the Board of Directors. Public 

comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are 

limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty 

(30) minutes being allowed for all public comment unless otherwise 

modified by the Chair. Speaking time may not be granted and/or loaned to 

another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time 

unless arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of 

speakers to have a spokesperson speak on their behalf. Comments must be 

kept brief and non-repetitive. The general Public Comment portion of the 

meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of 

the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda. Public 

comments on agenda items should be made at the time each item is 

considered.  No comments were heard.  

 

  

NIHD AND INYO 

COUNTY COVID-19 

UPDATE 

 

Interim Chief Executive Officer Kelli Davis reported that at the request 

and consideration of the Board of Directors, Covid 19 updates will 

become a standing agenda item at Northern Inyo Healthcare District 

(NIHD) Board meetings going forward. The following updates were 

provided: 

- The District continues to have weekly Incident Command 

meetings with key stakeholders, including representatives from 

Bishop Care Center, Southern Inyo Healthcare District, and the 

Toiyabe Indian Health Project.  Summaries of Incident Command 

meetings are published weekly. 

- The District is currently continuing to vaccinate members of the 

community who are 65 years of age and older.  

- The District continues to see a downward trend in Covid 19 

Page 78 of 155



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                   February 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 2 of 6 

numbers, with a reactivity rate of 20.9% as of this morning. 

- The District continues to receive a steady supply of Covid 19 

vaccines weekly. 

- Inyo County has not yet released its process for mass vaccination, 

but it is anticipated that information on that topic will be released 

in the very near future.  

- The District continues to strongly recommend that employees 

undergo regular COVID testing.  

Reports from Board members were heard regarding the public’s desire for 

clearer information on vaccination eligibility. Dr. Timbers reported that 

the state’s online website tool (myturn.ca.gov) will soon be available for 

Inyo County residents to query their eligibility, and to determine local 

vaccine administration locations.  

 

MOMENT OF 

APPRECIATION FOR 

DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 

AND PROVIDERS 

 

Mr. Sharp recognized District employees and providers for their hard 

work and excellent patient care, taking a moment to name individuals who 

had over the last month received patient praise, acknowledgement, or who 

had participated in District-sponsored community outreach events.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER PEPRA 

RETIREMENT PLAN 

TERMINATION AND 

APPROVAL OF 

DISTRICT BOARD 

RESOLUTION 21-01 

 

Ms. Davis provided a summary of the District’s past retirement plans and 

reported that in 2016 a PEPRA retirement plan was created specifically 

for the District Chief Executive Officer. Since its creation, the PEPRA 

Plan has had only one enrollee, and the District should now determine 

whether or not it will keep the plan open for future enrollees. 

 

Keith Collins, General Counsel, called attention to proposed District 

Board Resolution 21-01, which would terminate the 2016 PEPRA 

retirement plan.  It was moved by Jody Veenker, seconded by Topah 

Spoonhunter, and unanimously passed to approve District Board 

Resolution 21-01 as presented, and to terminate the PEPRA retirement 

plan previously created for the Chief Executive Officer. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

DEPARTMENT UPDATE 

 

Alison Murray, Acting Human Resources Director, presented to the Board 

of Directors a detailed summary of the activities the Human Resources 

department has completed in response to recommendations made by 

MRG consultants. Those activities included: 

- A reassessment of the staffing needs for the department. With the 

acquisition of Payroll and District Education personnel, the 

Human Resources department will now be staffed by 7 FTEs. 

- Updates on the recruitment process, including the addition of a 

Recruitment Specialist and working with department leaders to 

develop plans for difficult-to-fill positions. 

- A comprehensive assessment of the leave management process 

(software will be obtained to automate that process). 

- Pursuing PHR (Professional in Human Resources) certification for 

members of the department   

- Development of training programs for District leaders  

- Conducting file and process audits for compliance 

Page 79 of 155



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                   February 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 3 of 6 

- Reviewing the District’s employee compensation plan and pay 

philosophy  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER SEARCH 

UPDATE 

 

This item was tabled for update at the March regular Board of Directors 

meeting.  

 

FEBRUARY 20, 2021 

SPECIAL BOARD 

MEETING, ANNUAL 

CEO EVALUATION 

 

Ms. Davis reported a Special Board Meeting will be held on February 20, 

2021 by online videoconference. After public comment, the meeting will 

adjourn into Closed Session to conduct the annual Chief Executive 

Officer evaluation.  

BRONCO CLINIC 

UPDATE 

Ms. Davis reported that Bishop High School Bronco Clinic operations 

have been suspended as of February 15, 2021. The District is looking to 

re-open the Clinic before the next school year, after Clinic workflows and 

billing challenges have been addressed.  

CHIEF OF STAFF 

REPORT 

 

 

APPROVAL OF 

PROPOSED NIHD 

MEDICAL STAFF 

BYLAWS 

Chief of Medical Staff Charlotte Helvie MD called to attention to 

proposed draft Medical Staff Bylaws which were approved by the 

Medical Staff at their February general meeting.   It was moved by Mary 

Mae Kilpatrick, seconded by Jody Veenker, and unanimously passed to 

approve the draft NIHD Medical Staff Bylaws as presented. 

POLICY AND 

PROCEDURE 

APPROVALS 

Dr. Helvie reported following careful review, consideration, and approval 

by the appropriate Committees, the Medical Executive Committee 

recommends approval of the following Policies and Procedures: 

1. Discharge Medications Policy 

2. Interfacility Transfer Guidelines 

3. Admission, Care, Discharge and Transfer of the Newborn 

4. Base Station Pre-Hospital Care Policy 

5. Base Station Quality Improvement Program Pre-Hospital 

 

It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Mary Mae Kilpatrick, and 

unanimously passed to approve the Policies and Procedures 1 through 5 as 

presented. 

 

NOTICE OF 

AUTOMATIC ACTION 

Dr. Helvie reported that in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, the 

following member has had his privileges suspended for non-compliance 

with liability insurance requirements, and notice is being provided to the 

Board of Directors. This action is not for medical disciplinary cause or 

reason and is not a reportable action. 

1. Rainier Manzanilla, MD (cardiology) 

 

FORMATION OF AD 

HOC JOINT CONF. 

COMMITTEE 

Dr. Helvie called to attention the creation of a Joint Conference 

Committee as part of the new Medical Staff Bylaws. The committee will 

be composed of two Board members, two members of the Medical 

Page 80 of 155



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                   February 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 4 of 6 

Executive Committee, and the CEO or CMO as an ex-officio member. 

It was moved by Mr. Sharp, seconded by Mr. Spoonhunter, and 

unanimously passed to appoint the following two Board members to the 

Joint Conference Committee on a temporary basis: 

1. Robert Sharp 

2. Jody Veenker 

  

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

REPORT 

 

Dr. Helvie additionally provided the following update on recent Medical 

Staff meetings: 

- The Medical Staff general meeting convened and approved the 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

- The Physician Wellness Committee met to compile results of a 

recent provider engagement and satisfaction survey 

- The Medical Executive Committee selected the following COVID 

19 response heroes for the month of February from the 

nominations received:  

o The RHC drive-through clinic team members  

o Dr. Charlotte Helvie 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Mr. Sharp called attention to the Consent Agenda for this meeting, which 

contained the following items: 

1. Approval of minutes of the January 20 2021 regular meeting 

2. Pioneer Home Health quarterly report 

3. Eastern Sierra Emergency Physicians quarterly report 

4. Financial and Statistical reports as of December 31 2020 

5. Cerner Implementation update  

 

It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Mr. Spoonhunter, and 

unanimously passed to approve Consent Agenda Items 1 through 5 as 

presented. 

 

NIHD COMMITTEE 

UPDATES FROM 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Mr. Sharp asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished to 

provide updates on their attendance at NIHD Committee meetings. 

Comments were heard from: 

- Ms. Kilpatrick, who reported on her attendance at the Medical 

Executive Committee meeting. She expressed her appreciation of 

Dr. Helvie’s work on the Bronco Clinic, and reported that Dr. 

Bowersox would be returning in March to provide surgical 

services.  Ms. Kilpatrick additionally reported on the Pioneer 

Home Health (PHH) Board of Directors meeting, noting that 

Pioneer Home Health is currently experiencing billing issues. Ms. 

Davis stated that she will look into the possibility of providing 

assistance or resources to PHH.  

  

REVIEW OF NIHD 

MEDICAL 

STAFF/BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS AD HOC 

Mr. Sharp called to attention the minutes of the Medical Staff/Board of 

Directors Ad Hoc Committee meetings. Comments were heard from: 

- Ms. Kilpatrick, who recognized the importance of provider 

participation in the District Strategic Planning sessions and the 

Page 81 of 155



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                   February 17, 2021 

Regular Meeting                       Page 5 of 6 

MEETING MINUTES importance of obtaining positive feedback from the community to 

recognize our providers.  

- Mr. Sharp, who welcomed provider participation in upcoming 

Strategic Planning sessions, and also suggested feedback by letter 

or email to Board members if providers are unable to attend. 

 

REPORTS FROM 

BOARD MEMBERS 

 

Director Kilpatrick reported on her recent experience at the District and 

expressed her heartfelt thanks for the compassion, caring, and love she 

received from all NIHD staff members during a very difficult time. 

 

ADJOURNMENT TO 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

At 7:09 pm Mr. Sharp announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed 

Session to allow the District Board of Directors to: 

A. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Agency Designated 

Representative: Irma Moisa; Employee Organization: AFSCME 

Council 57 (pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6).  

 

RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND REPORT 

OF ACTION TAKEN 

 

At 9:03 pm the meeting returned to Open Session. Mr. Sharp reported the 

Board took no reportable action. 

 

ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 9:03 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Robert Sharp, Chair 

 

            Attest: ________________________________

                                         Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Page 82 of 155



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                  February 20, 2021 

Special Meeting                       Page 1 of 1  

      

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:01 am by Robert Sharp, District 

Board Chair. 

 

PRESENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPPORTUNITY FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND REPORT 

OF ACTION TAKEN 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Robert Sharp, Chair   

Jody Veenker, Vice Chair 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Topah Spoonhunter, Treasurer 

Jean Turner, Member-At-Large 

Kelli Davis MBA, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating  

    Officer  

 

 

Mr. Sharp reported at this time, members of the audience may speak only 

on items listed on the Notice for this meeting, and speakers will be limited 

to a maximum of three minutes each.  The Board is prohibited from 

generally discussing or taking action on items not included on the Notice 

for this meeting.   Comments in support of Northern Inyo Healthcare 

District (NIHD) Interim Chief Executive Officer Kelli Davis were heard 

from NIHD Information Technology Director Bryan Harper.  No other 

comments were heard. 

 

At 10:03 am Mr. Sharp announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed 

Session to allow the District Board of Directors to: 

1. Conduct a Public Employee Performance Evaluation (pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54957(b)), title:  Interim Chief 

Executive Officer.  
Mr. Sharp stated the Board did not anticipate that any reportable action 

would be announced following the conclusion of Closed Session. 

 

At 12:26 pm the meeting returned to Open Session.  Mr. Sharp reported 

that the Board took no reportable action. 

 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:26 pm. 

 

  

  

 

 

  

_________________________________ 

Robert Sharp, Chair 

 

 

         Attest: _________________________________ 

                              Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Page 83 of 155



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                  February 27, 2021 

Special Meeting                       Page 1 of 1  

      

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting was called to order at 9:02 am by Robert Sharp, District 

Board Chair. 

 

PRESENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPPORTUNITY FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND REPORT 

OF ACTION TAKEN 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Robert Sharp, Chair   

Jody Veenker, Vice Chair 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Topah Spoonhunter, Treasurer 

Jean Turner, Member-At-Large 

 

 

 

Mr. Sharp reported at this time, members of the audience may speak only 

on items listed on the Notice for this meeting, and speakers will be limited 

to a maximum of three minutes each.  The Board is prohibited from 

generally discussing or taking action on items not included on the Notice 

for this meeting.  No comments were heard. 

 

At 9:03 am Mr. Sharp announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed 

Session to allow the District Board of Directors to: 

1. Conduct a Public Employee Performance Evaluation (pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54957(b)), title:  Interim Chief 

Executive Officer.  
Mr. Sharp noted that the Board did not anticipate that any reportable 

action would be announced following the conclusion of Closed Session. 

 

At 12:09 pm the meeting returned to Open Session.  Mr. Sharp reported 

that the Board took no reportable action. 

 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:09 pm. 

 

  

  

 

 

  

_________________________________ 

Robert Sharp, Chair 

 

 

         Attest: _________________________________ 

                              Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Secretary 

Page 84 of 155



Page 85 of 155



Page 86 of 155



Page 87 of 155



Page 88 of 155



Page 89 of 155



Page 90 of 155



Page 91 of 155



Page 92 of 155



Page 93 of 155



Page 94 of 155



Page 95 of 155



Page 96 of 155



Page 97 of 155



Page 98 of 155



Page 99 of 155



Page 100 of 155



Page 101 of 155



Page 102 of 155



Page 103 of 155



Page 104 of 155



1 

March 17th 2021 Interim Chief 

Medical Officer Report to the 

Board of Directors 

COVID-19 Update 

The District and community continue to see a decrease in COVID-19 cases. We are still seeing 

cases that require hospitalization and ICU level care but our resources are not currently strained. 

We are working closely with county and state partners to survey the community for the presence 

of any concerning variants. Absent a more virulent severe COVID-19 strain that becomes predom-

inant and is less susceptible to vaccinations I am hopeful that we will continue to see improvement 

over the next few months.  

COVID-19 Testing 

Access to all modalities of COVID-19 testing has remained robust. At this time our future supply 

lines look good.  

COVID-19 Vaccines 

The successful District wide vaccine roll out has now expanded to the community in-line with CDC 

and CDPH guidelines. We are currently offering both the Pfizer/Biontech and Moderna vaccines 

Page 105 of 155



2 

depending on availability. We have also partnered with Inyo County to assist with two mass vac-

cination events which were very successful. At this time our vaccine supply is still limited but we 

have seen improvements and I foresee this trend continuing. I am optimistic that by late spring 

anyone who wants to be vaccinated will have the opportunity. We will also see an increase the 

Johnson and Johnson vaccine. Having multiple vaccines will ensure more access and also decrease 

the probability that any one new variant would be able to successfully evade the immune response 

generated by each vaccine. I suspect that we will see a loosening of restrictions on gatherings and 

activities at both the state and federal level over the next few weeks. As always though our message 

from the District should continue to be focused on the importance of vaccinating, masking, and 

hygiene. I think there is light at the end of the proverbial tunnel but we’re not there yet, and we 

need to double down on our efforts. 

Weekly Press Briefings 

Weekly press briefings continue as needed.  

Contract Negotiations 

The Compensation Committee meet this month. The purpose of this meeting was to discuss the 

Committees role in guiding compensation and to introduce some concepts such as fair market 

value, full time equivalent, relative value units, among others. This multidisciplinary committee 

will meet at least quarterly in addition to as needed. Again the goal is standardization, transparency, 

and FMV-based compensation.  

Page 106 of 155



3 

Dr. Cheryl Olson 

Dr. Olson, a breast surgeon has begun providing care and has been well received.  

Dr. Jane Yoon 

Dr. Yoon is a pediatrician who has accepted an offer starting in June 2021 to fill Dr. Helvie’s 

position. 

General Surgery Update 

Recruitment for a general surgeon has continued to be difficult. The most recent promising candi-

date has accepted a position elsewhere. We are exploring other options in the short term and mid 

term for coverage. One option is a group from Orange County of 12 general surgeons who may be 

interested in providing coverage. These conversations are in the early discovery phase.  

Medical Staff Office Update  

Dianne Picken continues to grow and excel in her role as MSO director with the assistance of 

Allison Bishop. 

Quality 

The quality team remains hard at work planning for implementation of Cerner and i2i and how 

these systems will change our quality reporting and data collection processes.  

Page 107 of 155



4 

Pharmacy 

Pharmacy continues to be instrumental in helping to store and administer vaccines as well as with 

helping to administer monoclonal antibody therapy. Pharmacy is also deeply involved in Cerner 

implementation and ensuring operability.  

Cerner Implementation  

Cerner work continues. Training of super uses and subject matter experts will begin in earnest and 

work continues on development of order sets, foreign systems interface, and integration testing. 

COVID-19 has forced creativity in completing some of these tasks and WIPFLI and Cerner have 

been partners in finding solutions to ensure staff safety while making sure the work gets done. With 

the easing of COVID-19 restrictions we will welcome small groups of consultants onsite.  

Transition of CMO  

Lastly, Dr. Joy Engblade has accepted the position of CMO and will start 4/4/21. It has been a 

privilege to serve the District and community in my interim role, and I sincerely appreciate the 

support of the Board over the past year. I am confident that Joy will excel in the CMO role and I 

look forward to working with her over the next few weeks as I and the rest of the Admin team bring 

her up to speed.  

 

Respectfully, 

 

Will Timbers, MD  

Page 108 of 155



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
DATE:                March 2021 

TO:                     Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District 

FROM:               Allison Partridge, RN, MSN, Chief Nursing Officer                  

RE:                     Department Update  

 

REPORT DETAIL 

Old Business 

COVID-19 

The District as a whole continues to manage daily the challenges that COVID-19 has presented. 

We continue with weekly incident command meetings. We review the District's current state of 

preparedness during incident command and identify any areas or opportunities that require 

additional review and or problem-solving. Recently, leadership from Toiyabe, Bishop Care 

Center, and Southern Inyo Healthcare District have joined our weekly incident command, which 

has fostered further collaboration in addressing our community's needs during this pandemic. Our 

Infection Prevention Team continues to monitor and provide updates on both national and local 

status and recommendations. NIHD continues to partner with Inyo County Public Health in the 

administration of COVID-19 vaccines. 

 

New Business 

Cerner 

The District continues with a focused effort on our upcoming Cerner implementation. Our teams 

completed Integrated Testing 1.0 and 1.5. Both of these events helped identify areas that require 

additional focus before go-live.  

 

Efficiency Work 

The District continues with efficiency work in the outpatient clinics. We continue working in the 

RHC and Internal Medicine Clinic and most recently began work in the Pediatric Clinic.  

There has been outstanding engagement from the clinic teams in this vital work.  

 

Language Services 

Our Language Services Department continues to provide translation and interpretation support for 

our COVID-19 efforts. There has been an extensive collaboration with our District 

150 Pioneer Lane 

Bishop, California 93514 

(760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415 

  

Improving our communities, one life at a time. 

One Team. One Goal. Your Health. 

 

Page 109 of 155



Communication Team and the Inyo County Communication Team to ensure that community 

updates and educational materials reach our Spanish-speaking community members.  

  

 

Page 110 of 155



Page 111 of 155



Page 112 of 155



Page 113 of 155



Page 114 of 155



Page 115 of 155



Page 116 of 155



Page 117 of 155



 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

SUBMISSION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FOR APPROVAL 

 
Date:  March 5, 2021 
 
Title:  COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT 
 
Presenter(s): Patty Dickson 
  Compliance Officer 
 
Synopsis: The Compliance Department Quarterly Report updates the Board on the work 
of the Compliance Department. It provides information on audits, breaches, contract work, and 
projects.  All information in the report is summarized, however, any additional details will be 
provided to the Board of Directors upon request. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept this quarterly Compliance Report. 
 
 
 

                      Prepared by:      Patty Dickson 
       Compliance Officer 
 
 
     Reviewed by: __________________________________ 
       Name  
       Title 
 

      Approved by: __________________________________ 
        Name 
        Title 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR EXECUTIVE TEAM USE ONLY: 
 
 
Date of Executive Team Approval: ________ Submitted by:________________________________ 
                                                                                                                     Chief Officer 

 

Page 118 of 155



     
 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District 150 Pioneer Lane 
 Bishop, CA  93514 

 (760) 873-5811 
 www.nih.org 

 
 

 

Compliance Report 

March 2021 

 

1. Compliance Department Team 
a. The Compliance team is currently reviewing applications to add a Compliance Clerk 

to the department.  

b. The Compliance team is also working with Senior Leadership to add a temporary 

position specific to the Policy Tech (policy management software) Project. 

2. Comprehensive Compliance Program review – no update since Annual Compliance 

Report of November 2020. 

3. Breaches  
a. The Compliance Department has investigated 16 alleged breaches since November 

1, 2020. 

i. Investigations closed with no reporting required – 10 

ii. Investigations still active – 3 

iii. Reported to CDPH/OCR – 3  

1. No determinations received from CDPH 

b. The Compliance Department has investigated 75 alleged breaches in CY 2020. 

i. Investigations closed with no reporting required – 59 

ii. Investigations still active – 0 

iii. Reported to CDPH/OCR – 16 

4. Issues and Inquiries  
a. The Compliance Team researches regulatory concerns, ever-changing COVID 

regulations and guidance, and internal policy for all requests for assistance. 

b. Compliance has assisted with more than 30 research requests since the beginning of 

January 2021. 

5. Audits 

a. Employee Access Audits - The Compliance Department Analyst manually 

completes audits for access of patient information systems to ensure employees’ 

access records only on a work-related, “need to know,” and “minimum necessary” 

basis.  

i. The HIPAA and HITECH Acts imply that organizations must perform due 

diligence by actively auditing and monitoring for appropriate use of PHI. 

Page 119 of 155



     
 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District 150 Pioneer Lane 
 Bishop, CA  93514 

 (760) 873-5811 
 www.nih.org 

 
 

These audits are also required by the Joint Commission and are a component 

of the “Meaningful Use” requirements.  

ii. Access audits monitor who is accessing records by audit trails created in the 

systems. These audits allow us to detect unusual or unauthorized access of 

patient medical records.  

iii. Audits are also conducted when requested or “for cause” 

iv. Compliance performs between 250-800 audits monthly.  

1. Each audit ranges from hundreds of lines of data to thousands of lines 

of data. 

2. A “flag” is created when any access appears unusual. 

3. Flags are reviewed and resolved by comparison audits, workflow 

review, discussions with workforce, and discussions with leadership. 

v. See attachment A for audit statistics 

b. Business Associates Agreements (BAA) audit 

i. We currently have approximately 160 Business Associates Agreements.  

ii. 7 BAAs are currently in negotiations 

iii. We have executed around 20 BAAs since June 1, 2020 

c. Vendor Contract reviews 

i. 29 contracts currently in the review process 

ii. More than 40 agreements or contracts have been reviewed and executed since 

August 2020. 

iii. Reviewing all Athena and Partners contracts for notification of cancellation or 

renegotiation timelines – 15 contracts are part of this process. 

d. PACS (Picture Archival and Communication System) User Access Agreements - No 

update since previous quarterly report 

e. HIMS scanning audit – Scheduled for Q2 CY 2021 

f. Language Access Services Audit – Audit currently in progress 

i. Audits for Language Access Services to ensure Limited English Proficiency 

(LEP) patients are provided with the appropriate access to ensure safe, quality 

healthcare.   

ii. Audits review documentation of language assistance provided to LEP patients 

iii. Action items from audits allow the Compliance team to work with Language 

Access Services Manager, Jose Garcia, to develop tools for the workforce to 

ensure all proper steps are followed. 

Page 120 of 155



     
 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District 150 Pioneer Lane 
 Bishop, CA  93514 

 (760) 873-5811 
 www.nih.org 

 
 

iv. Language Access regulations are enforced by the HHS Office of Civil Rights. 

g. HIPAA Security Risk Assessment – Completed November 2020 (requires 

collaboration between Compliance Officer and Security Officer) 

i. Annual requirement to assess security and privacy risk areas as defined in 45 

CFR 164.3.  Review of 157 privacy and security elements performed in 

conjunction with Information Technology Services. Due again in Nov 2021 

ii. NIHD is now using VendorMate (GHX) vendor credentialing software. This 

allows us to be compliant with our Vendor Credentialing Policy, and several 

facility security elements of 45 CFR 164.   

1. We have over 70 Vendor Companies registered. 

2. We have over 127 Representatives registered. 

h. 340B audit – Annual external audit underway 

i. An audit of NIHD Board of Directors Agendas, Minutes, and Resolutions is in 

progress. 

6. CPRA (California Public Records Act) Requests  

a. The Compliance office either has responded or is responding to two CPRA requests 

to date in 2021. 

7. Compliance Workplan - – no update since previous quarterly report 

8. Unusual Occurrence Reports (UOR)  - Transitioned to Quality Department 

a. UORs now addressed by Michelle Garcia with support from Ali Feinberg, Robin 

Christensen, and assistance from the Compliance Department as needed. Reporting 

on UORs will no longer accompany the Compliance Quarterly Report. 

9. Compliance and Business Ethics Committee  

a. Need to reassess team members and meeting dates 

10. California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CAL DOSH) Complaint  
a. No further communication from CAL DOSH at this time (09/04/2020). 

11.  Optimization, update, and audit of Policy Management software 
a. Proper policies and policy management is a large component of an effective 

Compliance Program. 

b. A small team comprised of nursing, operations, compliance, and ITS representatives 

have been completing work on the policy management software optimization. 

c. The Compliance Department is working with the Executive team to bring in an 

experienced Policy Tech Project Analyst to assist with this very specific project. The 

Page 121 of 155



     
 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District 150 Pioneer Lane 
 Bishop, CA  93514 

 (760) 873-5811 
 www.nih.org 

 
 

project has had significant delays due to the COVID pandemic and EHR 

implementation.  

12.  Optimization, update, and audit of Contract Management software 
a. Update to most current version of software occured in September 2020 

b. Training for licensed users occured in September 2020 

c. Approximately 75% of active contracts have been updated to utilize additional 

features available in the updated software. 

d. Will reduce visible contracts from almost 1800 to the roughly 400 currently active 

contracts  

e. All historic contracts in the system will still be available for review. 

 

Page 122 of 155



Employee Access Audits

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21
TOTAL ED SAME LAST NAME 

ENCOUNTERS 59 97 108 115 77 104 108 75 29 51
AUDITED ED SAME LAST 

NAMES ENCOUNTERS 59 97 108 115 77 104 108 75 29 51
%  AUDITED 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

TOTAL ED HIGH PROFILE PT 
ENCOUNTERS 0 1 0 2 0 2 1 0 1 1

AUDITED ED HIGH PROFILE 
ENCOUNTERS 0 1 0 2 0 2 1 0 1 1
%  AUDITED #DIV/0! 100.0% #DIV/0! 100.0% #DIV/0! 100.0% 100.0% #DIV/0! 100.0% 100.0%

TOTAL ED - EMPLOYEE 
ENCOUNTERS 2 13 17 19 11 10 24 12 16 10

AUDITED ED - EMPLOYEE 
ENCOUNTERS 2 13 17 19 11 10 24 12 16 10
%  AUDITED 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

TOTAL IP SAME LAST NAME 
ENCOUNTERS 39 41 80 42 54 77 54 31 13 25

AUDITED IP SAME LAST 
NAMES ENCOUNTERS 39 41 80 42 54 77 54 31 13 25

%  AUDITED 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
TOTAL IP HIGH PROFILE PT 

ENCOUNTERS 2 2 0 1 0 0 4 6 0 0
AUDITED IP HIGH PROFILE 

ENCOUNTERS 2 2 0 1 0 0 4 6 0 0
%  AUDITED 100.0% 100.0% #DIV/0! 100.0% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 100.0% 100.0% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

TOTAL IP - EMPLOYEE 
ENCOUNTERS 5 5 10 13 7 7 9 2 3 0

AUDITED IP - EMPLOYEE 
ENCOUNTERS 5 5 10 13 7 7 9 2 3 0
%  AUDITED 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% #DIV/0!

TOTAL OP SAME LAST NAME 
ENCOUNTERS 416 401 537 453 448 618 760 498 225 301

AUDITED OP SAME LAST 
NAMES ENCOUNTERS 416 401 537 453 448 618 760 498 225 301

%  AUDITED 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
TOTAL OP HIGH PROFILE PT 

ENCOUNTERS 32 22 13 5 7 17 28 10 7 0
AUDITED OP HIGH PROFILE 

ENCOUNTERS 32 22 13 5 7 17 28 10 7 0
%  AUDITED 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% #DIV/0!

TOTAL OP - EMPLOYEE 
ENCOUNTERS 162 187 185 277 258 159 286 245 242 110

AUDITED OP - EMPLOYEE 
ENCOUNTERS 162 187 185 277 258 159 286 245 242 110
%  AUDITED 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

TOTAL NEW   (<90 DAY) 
EMPLOYEES 13 17 15 3 4 12 10 10 19 11

AUDITED NEW   (<90 DAY) 
EMPLOYEES 13 17 15 3 4 12 10 10 19 11
%  AUDITED 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

FOR-CAUSE AUDITS 3 2 4 6 4 3 2 2 2 9

Total # monthly audits 728 792 741 994 870 1009 1286 891 551 518

Compliance changed the methodology to provide more effective and efficient auditing of high risk records in August of 2019.

Page 123 of 155



Audit Flags

20-Aug 20-Sep Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21

Employee as patient audit 4 5 15 8 10 6

High profile patient audit 0 1 0 0 0 0

New employee audit 0 0 0 0 0 2

Same last name audit 0 1 3 2 0 0

Random 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employee Access Audits 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 4 7 18 10 10 8
 Appears Compliant 4 7 18 10 10 3

Appears Non-Compliant 0 0 0 0 0 5
Ongoing Investigation 0 0 0 0 0 0

Audit flags are concerns that arise during the audit process.  They require additional investigation to determine if the access is 
appropriate use of patient information.

Page 124 of 155



Page 125 of 155



Page 126 of 155



Page 127 of 155



Page 128 of 155



Page 129 of 155



Page 130 of 155



Page 131 of 155



Page 132 of 155



Page 133 of 155



Page 134 of 155



Page 135 of 155



Page 136 of 155



Page 137 of 155



Page 138 of 155



Page 139 of 155



Page 140 of 155



Page 141 of 155



Page 142 of 155



Page 143 of 155



Page 144 of 155



Page 145 of 155



Page 146 of 155



Page 147 of 155



Page 1 
 

         NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR INFORMATION 
Date: March 5, 2021 
Title: CERNER PROJECT UPDATE 

 

Top Accomplishments for this Reporting Period 
1. Integration Test Events:  We have three rounds of integration testing scheduled.  During integration testing we 

will test workflows and data flow.  A team was assembled to create integration test scripts.  These scripts test 
real-world patient scenarios from the time the patient enters the health system at registration continuing on all 
the way through simulating a claims submission.  We successfully completed the first round in February, we will 
complete the second round on March 12, and have the third round scheduled for April 6 through April 15. 

 
The first round of testing was performed using a hybrid approach with some staff working locally and some staff 
working from home.  In addition, the Cerner and Wipfli support teams worked remotely.  This hybrid approach 
allowed us to observe CDC and NIHD COVID-19 protocols.  To make this event as successful as possible, we 
utilized various technologies like Microsoft Teams sessions as a communication and screen sharing tool, and 
Smartsheets for distributing and working on the test scripts.  We also used online forms for reporting issues.  We 
were pleased with how well the event ran.  However, there were some communication delays that had we all 
been present, we could have worked through easier and more quickly.  These communication delays impacted 
our ability to fully test all of our scripts.  We completed approximately eighty percent of our scripts. 
 
During the first week of the second round of integration testing, we had seven Cerner consultants onsite to 
assist our team.  This approach allowed us to manage the safety risks while at the same time allowed us to assist 
the teams that are more complex and/or may be slightly behind schedule.  Depending on the status of the virus, 
we will consider bringing the full compliment of Cerner staff, approximately twenty to twenty-five staff onsite 
for the third round of testing. 
 

2. Project Communication:  The communication team recently completed a staff survey.  The survey gathered 
information about the level of satisfaction staff have in regard to how well the Communication Team is 
communicating.  The results were very positive.  The one area of improvement identified was the ability for the 
general staff to ask questions about the project.  As a result, we have an all-staff Town Hall meeting scheduled 
for March 18. 

 
In keeping with the spirit to look for opportunities to interject fun into the project, the Communication Team is 
planning a St. Paddy’s Day themed fun event. 

Page 148 of 155



Date: March 5, 2021 
Title: CERNER PROJECT UPDATE 

Page 2 
 

 
3. Training Plans: In preparation for end-user training, our subject matter experts and super users are finalizing 

their training plans.  Depending on each staff’s role they will receive between six and twelve hours of training.  
Most departments will deliver the training in person in small group settings.  In departments where this is not 
possible, they will use zoom meetings.  Knowing how important it is for the instructor and the students to be in 
the same room, zoom will be used as the last resort.  The end user training is scheduled to occur between April 
15 and May 15. 

 
Whereas our SMEs and SUs will lead the end-user training, Cerner will bring an instructor onsite to lead our 
provider training.  The provider training will also be a combination of in person training and zoom led sessions.  
Our resident staff will participate in-person and our travelers will participate via zoom.  In addition to this 
training, providers will receive a one on one concierge service.  During the concierge session, Cerner will assist 
the providers in setting up their system favorites.  Plans for the training sessions and concierge session are 
currently being finalized.  Training will occur the week of April 26 and Concierge services will occur the week of 
May 3. 
 

4. Multiview Financial Application Conversion / Go-Live Planning:  Multiview is the financial system that we 
purchased as part of the AthenaHealth replacement project.  This financial suite includes Accounts Payable, 
General Ledger, Fixed Assets and Budgeting.  As a stand-alone system, the go-live is a separate date from the 
Cerner go-live.  This allows us to implement Multiview in advance of Cerner.  We will convert to and go-live with 
Multiview on April 1, 2021.  In preparation for the Multiview go-live, the finance team is finalizing its testing and 
training.   
 

5. Cerner Conversion / Go-Live Planning:  We are beginning to plan for the conversion.  The plan will include the 
staffing and methodology to provide end-user support.  It will also define the issue reporting process and 
command center roles and responsibilities. 
 

Changes in Scope of Work:  
1. OneContent Single Sign-on: OneContent is a data archive system.  It will house much of the patient’s old 

medical record that is currently in Athena.  This single sign-on functionality will provide a hyperlink in the Cerner 
medical record that when clicked, will take the provider into the patient’s old records in OneContent without 
having to log into OneContent.  This will be a significant customer satisfaction feature for the providers. 

 

Issues or Concerns the Board of Directors Should Be Aware Of 
The issues or concerns of this reporting period remain the same as the previous reporting period. 
 
1. Staff Availability / Missed Deadlines: Cerner has expressed concern about some departments falling behind and 

missing deadlines.  These departments include Charge Services, Case/Care Management, Pharmacy, Supply 
Chain, and Experian.  The likely cause for falling behind is related to staff availability to work on project tasks.  
We continue to look for options to help these departments get caught up.  One option we implemented was to 
bring on seven Cerner consultants during the testing week of March 2 – 4.  This allowed the consultant to have 
dedicated in-person time with our teams to support their needs. 

 
As previously mentioned, Multiview will go-live on April 1, 202.  However, this date was moved back one month 
from the previously planned go-live date of March 1, 2021.  The postponement of Multiview is directly related to 
staff turnover and availability in the finance department.   We have secured additional resources to assist with 
the day to day operations of the finance department in order to free up time for staff to work on the final 
preparation tasks.  

Page 149 of 155



Date: March 5, 2021 
Title: CERNER PROJECT UPDATE 

Page 3 
 

 
2. COVID-19:  The virus continues to be a factor impacting the project.  The steering committee made the decision 

to conduct the first round of the Integration Testing event virtually.  They also made the decision to use a hybrid 
staffing model for the second round of testing.  

 

Upcoming Events or Milestones 
1. Integration Testing Rounds 1.5 

and 2.  Cerner is a highly 
integrated system.  We will 
perform end to end testing of our 
most common patient scenarios 
using integrated test scripts.  We 
will begin our integration testing 
on February 2 and will complete 
testing on April 15. 

 

2. End User Training: Along with 
comprehensive testing of the new 
system, effective end user training 
is vitally important to the success 
of the project.  Our Education 
Coordinator and Cerner are 
working on the education plan 
and schedule.  We will use a Train 
the Trainer approach and our 
trainers have received education 
and will continue to enhance their 
knowledge over the next couple of months to prepare them to be effective trainers. 
 
 
 

     Prepared by:  _Daryl Duenkel, Project Manager, Wipfli__ 
       Name and Title 
 

     Reviewed by:  __________________________________ 
       Name  
       Title of Chief who reviewed 
 

      Approved by:  __________________________________ 
        Name 
        Title of Chief who approved 
 

FOR EXECUTIVE TEAM USE ONLY: 
 
Date of Executive Team Acceptance: _________ Submitted by: __________________________________ 
                                                                                                                     Chief Officer 

 

Upcoming Event Calendar

 

Page 150 of 155



 

Page 4 
 

Page 151 of 155



 

Page 5 
 

Page 152 of 155



 

Page 6 
 

Page 153 of 155



 

Page 7 
 

 
Page 154 of 155



 

Page 8 
 

 

Page 155 of 155


	Table of Contents
	Agenda, March 17 2021 Board Meeting
	District Board Agenda, 3-17-21 Regular Meeting

	District Employees and Provider Appreciation
	Employee and Provider appreciation

	District Board Resolution 21-02, PMA Building Purchase
	District Board Resolution 21-02, PMA Partnership Purchase

	Policy and Procedure approval, Stabilization and Resuscitation of the Newborn
	Policy and Procedure Approval, Stabilization and Resusc. of the Newborn

	Chief Executive Officer Search Firm selection
	CEO Search Firm Ad Hoc Committee Report
	CEO Search Firm Rating Tool
	AMN CEO Search Proposal
	HealthCare Recruiters Intl. Search Firm Proposal
	Merraine Group Cover Letter
	Merraine Group CEO Search Proposal
	Sterling CEO Search Proposal

	Chief of Staff Report, March 2021
	Medical Executive Committee Report, March 2021
	Medical Staff Policy and Procedure approvals

	Consent Agenda
	Minutes, February 17 2021 regular meeting
	Minutes, February 20 2021 special meeting
	Minutes, February 27 2021 Special Meeting
	Interim CEO and COO Report
	Interim Chief Medical Officer Report
	Chief Nursing Officer report
	Financial and Statistical Reports as of January 31 2021
	Compliance Department Quarterly report
	Policy and Procedure annual approvals
	Cerner Implementation update, March 2021


